
 

 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny 

Sub-Committee  AGENDA 
 
 

DATE: 

 

Wednesday 7 December 2016 

 

TIME: 

 

7.30 pm 

 

VENUE: 

 

Committee Room 5, 

Harrow Civic Centre 

 
 

 

 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 3) 

   

  Chair: 

 

Councillor Phillip O'Dell  

 

  Councillors: 

 
Primesh Patel 
Aneka Shah-Levy 

 

Barry Macleod-Cullinane (VC) 
Bharat Thakker 
 

  
 

 
 

Reserve Members: 

 
1. Ghazanfar Ali 
2. Jeff Anderson 
3. Margaret Davine 

 

1. Richard Almond 
2. Amir Moshenson 
 

  
 

 
 

Contact:  Miriam Wearing, Senior Democratic Services Officer 

Tel:  020 8424 1542    E-mail:  miriam.wearing@harrow.gov.uk 
 



Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 7 December 2016 2 

 
 AGENDA - PART I   

 
1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests, arising 

from business to be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Sub-Committee; 
(b) all other Members present. 
 

3. MINUTES   (Pages 5 - 10) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2016 be taken as read and signed 

as a correct record. 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS *    
 
 To receive any public questions received in accordance with Committee Procedure 

Rule 17 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 
Questions will be asked in the order notice of them was received and there be a 
time limit of 15 minutes. 
 
[The deadline for receipt of public questions is 3.00 pm,  
Friday 2 December 2016.  Questions should be sent to 
publicquestions@harrow.gov.uk    

No person may submit more than one question]. 
 

5. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

6. REFERENCES FROM COUNCIL AND OTHER COMMITTEES/PANELS    
 
 To receive any references from Council and/or other Committees or Panels. 

 



Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 7 December 2016 3 

7. REVENUE AND CAPITAL MONITORING 2016/17 - QUARTER 2 AS OF 30 
SEPTEMBER 2016   (To Follow) 

 
 Report of the Director of Finance. 

 
8. DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET 2017/18 AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL 

STATEMENT 2017/18 - 2019/20   (To Follow) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance. 

 
9. CORPORATE EQUALITES OBJECTIVES - ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT 

2015/16   (Pages 11 - 50) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director, Strategic Commissioning. 

 
10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS    
 
 Which the Chair has decided is urgent and cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
 AGENDA - PART II - NIL   

 
 * DATA PROTECTION ACT NOTICE   
 The Council will audio record item 4 (Public Questions) and will place the audio recording on the 

Council’s website, which will be accessible to all. 
 
[Note:  The questions and answers will not be reproduced in the minutes.] 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 13 July 2016 - 62 - 

 
 
 

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE 

SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE  

MINUTES 
 

13 JULY 2016 
 
 
Chair: * Councillor Phillip O'Dell 
   
Councillors: 
 

* Barry Macleod-Cullinane 
* Primesh Patel  
 

* Aneka Shah-Levy 
* Bharat Thakker 
 

In attendance: 
(Councillors) 
 

Adam Swersky  
 

Minute 70 

* Denotes Member present 
 
 

65. Attendance by Reserve Members   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that there were no Reserve Members in attendance. 
 

66. Appointment of Vice-Chair   
 
RESOLVED:  To appoint Councillor Barry Macleod-Cullinane as Vice-Chair of 
the Sub-Committee for the 2016/2017 Municipal Year. 
 

67. Declarations of Interest   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that the following interest was declared: 
 
Agenda Item 8 – Revenue and Capital Monitoring 2015/2017 
Councillor Bharat Thakker declared a non-pecuniary interest in that he owned 
a couple of investment properties in Harrow.  He would remain in the room 
whilst the matter was considered and voted upon. 
 

Agenda Item 3
Pages 5 to 10

5



 

- 63 -  Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 13 July 2016 

68. Minutes   
 
RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 March 2016, be 
taken as read and signed as a correct record. 
 

69. Public Question, Petitions and References   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that no public questions, petitions or references were 
received at this meeting. 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS   
 

70. Revenue and Capital Monitoring 2015/16   
 
The Sub-Committee received a report of the Director of Finance on the 
revenue and capital outturn on 2015-16, which had been considered by 
Cabinet at its meeting on 16 June 2016. 
 
Following an overview of the report by the Director of Finance, Members 
asked the following questions and received responses from the officer and 
Portfolio Holder : 
 

• What does the carry forward column in table 1 relate to? 
 
A -  When a directorate has been unable to spend grant or project funding 

for specific work it can be carried forward.  
 

• The report states that the worsening position on bed and breakfast 
accommodation means that there is a real risk of a significant over 
spend in 2016-17.  What overspend was anticipated for the current 
year, will the overspend of £4m in the previous year remain or be 
adjusted for mitigation?  How will the budget be profiled and will the 
overspend be contained within housing services or managed across 
the Council? 

 
A -  The impact of the ongoing welfare reform and rising rents in the Private 

Rental Sector in Harrow had resulted in an increase in the numbers 
presenting as homeless.  The officers were investigating a range of 
measures to address this including demand management to avoid 
homelessness and the allocation of £30m for the purchase of 
properties by the Council.  Although there was intense scrutiny and 
focus on directorate specific budgets, it was necessary to manage the 
budget on a Council-wide basis.  The pressure from homelessness had 
been in the region of £2m the previous year, and was currently 
£3.8-4m.  A refresh of the budget process would be undertaken to 
refine and consider new measures.  The results of the refresh would be 
included in the budget report to Cabinet in December 2016. 

 

• The risk register for homelessness, as submitted to Council, indicated 
that measures would ‘at best slow down growth in demand’ and would 
be unlikely to make a significant contribution until 2018.  When is the 

6



 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 13 July 2016 - 64 - 

administration going to identify short term solutions?  The pressures 
will be exacerbated by the decanting of properties at the Grange Farm 
Estate, some of which were being used as short term accommodation.  
How many homes had been purchased by the Council? 

 
A - There were competing uses for available sites: regeneration which 

would raise revenue for the Council, affordable housing in the broadest 
sense, temporary accommodation, and other uses.  Discussion was 
taking place on a site by site basis and the input of Members would be 
appreciated.  However, these initiatives would not form an immediate 
solution.  Excellent progress was being made on the Grange Farm 
Estate regeneration which would replace 229 homes with 540, 
11 homes had been purchased, contracts exchanged on a block of 
14 new apartments in Aylesbury due for completion in the next two 
months, and offers submitted for a further 25 properties.  In addition, 
contracts had been let for approximately 6 properties to be built during 
the following year.  The overriding priority was the provision of more 
homes at affordable rents.  The aim was to provide in excess of 600 
properties over the next 5-6 years.  No further funding had been 
highlighted after the present infill programme.  There were currently 
300 families in bed and breakfast accommodation at an average cost 
of over £10,000 per family.  

 

• It would be helpful to know what causes this homelessness in order to 
tackle causes and therefore prevent the requirement for 
accommodation for an additional 500 homeless families annually. 
 

A - The officers were supporting people to enable them to remain in their 
current accommodation which included discretionary payments.  
People were moving out of private rented accommodation that they 
could no longer afford.  Less than one in ten rental properties were 
affordable for those on housing benefit.  Officers undertook to circulate 
a briefing on the causes of homelessness in Harrow.  

 

• What is the target for creation of affordable homes and what 
realignment will take place due to the changes in rent policy of 1% on 
year? 

 
A - The target is 40% affordable with perhaps 20% being genuinely 

affordable or targeted for those coming into temporary accommodation.  
Increases in build costs during the last couple of years had impacted 
on viability and, whilst officers aimed to maximise supply, it had to be 
determined via a viability assessment whether a particular 
development could support 40% affordable homes.  The affect of Brexit 
was unknown. 

 
With regard to rent policy changes, the February budget presented a 
holding position with restricted inflation and linked cost to the level of 
stock.  The reduction had been taken out of the housing revenue 
account and a service review was being undertaken regarding 
balancing the account.  Customer satisfaction remained good and 

7



 

- 65 -  Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 13 July 2016 

tenants had been consulted on options including the reduction of 
expenditure on repairs, commercialisation, and increased income. 
 

• What are the numbers of homeless families in bed and breakfast in 
Harrow and those allocated accommodation outside Harrow? 

 
A - Just over 300 families were in bed and breakfast, of which two thirds 

were in shared accommodation.  Approximately 600 had moved into 
longer term accommodation, some of which was outside Harrow, the 
latter resulted in no cost to Harrow.  The determination of how much 
temporary accommodation was required was influenced by 
government decisions on housing benefit. 

 

• A report was submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 
mitigation.  Were sufficient revenue resources available? 

 
A -  This had been the subject of a challenge panel which had  evaluated 

that the Council had been successful at prevention.  A business case 
was being prepared for the appointment of additional staff dealing with 
prevention.  

 

• What was the impact of brexit and why had it not been included on the 
previous risk register? 

 
A - A wide ranging dialogue with regard to the implications of brexit had 

taken place including, from a financial perspective, with treasury 
managers and pension fund managers and it would be included on the 
risk register in quarter 2.  It had been disappointing that the 
government had not made any plans in the event of a  brexit result. 

 
No impact had been evidenced for the Public Works Loan Board 
(PWLB).  The pension fund was subject to its three year valuation.  
There had been a reduction in gilts which would be factored into the 
pension fund valuation.  Monitoring of global equities had not identified 
any significant movement.  Brexit was being monitored centrally. 
 

• What were the revenue implications of slippage in extra cost to the 
revenue fund?  What does the slippage in budget mean in lost savings 
or revenue?  With regard to the directorate performance on capital, the 
resources directorate had spent £7.8m against a capital budget of 
£22m.  What level of capital slippage could be achieved regarding 
capital slippage?  

 
A - Capital spend had improved from 40% to 60%.  A re-profiling exercise 

aimed to increase certainty on what was available for commitments.  
The officers had undertaken to start to address revenue implications in 
the first quarter of 2016/17, based on the top 10 schemes for inclusion 
in the report to September Cabinet.  However, not all slippage had an 
impact on revenue.  

 

8



 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 13 July 2016 - 66 - 

A more rigorous approach in the current year which could include the 
reduction in or replacement of schemes could result in achieving 65% 
of capital expenditure. 

 

• What is the financial impact on social services of the living wage 
provision? 

 
A – Some mapping of the national minimum wage provision undertaken 

during the budget had indicated that there would be an impact, the 
major effect being on contract costs with providers.  With regard to the 
ACS precept, this was allocated in the budget as follows:£1.5m to 
demographic pressures and £525k for national minimum wage 
pressures within Adult Services. 

 

• What financial planning had taken place to mitigate the revised 
arrangements for distribution of business rates.  A better understanding 
of timetable and lobbying would assist. 

 
A - The first round of consultation on NNDR had been released, with a 

response required by 26 September.  The current three year budget 
included forecasts for NDDR and forecasts were looking slightly better 
than forecast. 

 

• What additional resources had been required to help resolve the issues 
with Keepmote and what was the additional cost?  

 
A -  SEP 2 slippage had not affected the delivery of school places although 

some were in temporary accommodation.  Children’s Services were 
challenging claims from the contractor to ensure reasonable and that 
represented value for money.  Members raised that they understood 
additional resource had been brought in by the Children’s Directorate 
to help with the challenge process and would be interested as to how 
this was funded.  Officers agreed to send this information to Members 
of the Sub-Committee. 

  

• What action was being taken in connection with climate change fuel 
poverty? 

 
A - The scheme had been aimed at those in most fuel poverty but they had 

been unable to follow the initiatives.  The officer undertook to circulate 
additional information.  

 

• In relation to Treasury Management 2015/16, what is the cost of 
borrowing and interest earned on investments? 

 
A - The Council had not borrowed for three to four years as cash balances 

were being used although it could be necessary to borrow at some 
point in the current financial year.  The officers undertook to circulate 
further detail. 

  

9



 

- 67 -  Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 13 July 2016 

• In building large scale assets the Council was increasing its risk should 
investments go down.  Were assets matched with borrowing, and what 
was the duration? 

 
A – The investment was for the long term and fluctuations within the 

schemes would need to be managed.  
 

The Chair thanked the officers for their attendance. 
 

RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 
(Note:  The meeting, having commenced at 7.30 pm, closed at 9.05 pm). 
 
 
 
 
 
(Signed) COUNCILLOR PHILLIP O'DELL 
Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

PERFORMANCE AND 

FINANCE SCRUTINY 

SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

7 December 2016 

Subject: 

 

Corporate Equalities Objectives – 
Annual Progress Report 2015/16 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Alex Dewsnap,  
Divisional Director Strategic 
Commissioning 
 

Scrutiny Lead 

Member area: 

 

Cllr Phillip O’Dell, Corporate 
Resources Performance Lead Member 
Cllr Stephen Wright, Corporate 
Resources Policy Lead Member 
 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Wards affected: 

 

All 

 

Enclosures: 

 

 
Corporate Equalities Objectives – 
Annual Progress Report 2015/16 

 

Agenda Item 9
Pages 11 to 50

11



 

 

 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

 
This report provides an update on our progress against the Council’s Equality 
Objectives which were adopted by Cabinet in April 2012.  
 
Recommendations:  
The Performance and Finance Sub-Committee is asked to: 
 

1. Note the progress made against our Corporate Equality Objectives for 
2015/16 

 
2. Note the new Corporate Equality Objectives for 2016 – 2020 and the 

Action Plan for 2016/17 

 

Section 2 – Report 
Introduction 
 
1. Harrow is one of the most ethnically and religiously diverse boroughs in 

London with people of many different backgrounds and life experiences 
living side by side.  It is the richness of this diversity, and the positive 
impact that it has on the borough and the community, that helps make 
Harrow such a great place to live, work and visit.  The borough’s diversity 
is something to value and encourage and this report highlights the 
Council’s commitment to maintaining and building on our strengths by 
ensuring equality and diversity is integral to everything we do. 
 

2. Harrow’s diverse population generates a range of needs and expectations 
all of which the Council has to understand in order to provide appropriate 
services.  As resources become scarcer, it is even more important to 
understand the community, their needs and aspirations and to be able to 
provide the right services at the right time.   

 
Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty 
 
3. The Equality Act contains a range of rights, powers and obligations to help 

the drive towards equality.  The Act aims to strengthen and simplify the 
equality law that was already in place, such as the Race Relations Act and 
the Disability Discrimination Act. 
 

4. Section 149 of the Act introduced a new Public Sector Equality Duty 
(PSED) which requires public authorities, in the exercise of their functions, 
to have due regard to the need to:  

 

• Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 
conduct prohibited by the Act; 

• Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not; and 

12



 

 

• Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic 
and those who do not.   

 
5. The new PSED replaces the previous three Public Sector Equality Duties 

– for race, disability and gender  - and now covers Age, Disability, Gender 
Reassignment, Pregnancy and Maternity, Race (this includes ethnic or 
national origins, colour or nationality) Religion or Belief (includes lack of 
belief), Sex and Sexual Orientation. 
 

6. It also applies to Marriage and Civil Partnership but only in respect of the 
requirement to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination. 

 
7. The PSED is supported by specific duties which are intended to help 

public authorities to meet its requirements.  Public authorities covered by 
the specific duties are required to: 

 

• Publish by the 31st January each year information to demonstrate their 
compliance with the general equality duty; and 

 

• Prepare and publish by 6 April 2012, and at least every four years 
thereafter one or more equality objectives.  

 
Collate and Publish Equalities Information 
 
8. In order to meet the first requirement of the PSED, a number of local 

authorities have published spread sheets containing equalities data about 
their service users and workforce, whilst others have agreed to continue to 
publish their annual equality in employment report relating to their 
workforce and Equality Impact Assessments (EqIAs) as required by the 
previous duties.    
 

9. Although this approach meets the requirements, the Council decided to 
publish its equalities data in a more constructive way. 

 
10. In order to ensure that the data published is easy to understand and to 

ensure transparency with regard to progress in addressing inequality and 
delivering services reflective of the needs of our community, the Council 
prepared and published equalities information/data in the form of a 
narrative document ‘Our Harrow, Our Story’. This is a narrative of the 
services and projects delivered by the Council which not only support the 
Corporate Priorities but address inequality, advances equality of 
opportunity and fosters good relations.  The document includes real life 
case studies of service users and is supported by a set of Appendices 
which hold the data. 

 
11. In 2012 the Equality and Human Rights Commission undertook a review of 

how public services generally complied with the requirement to publish 
data and singled out Harrow Council as the best practice exemplar for the 
transparency and ease of access to the data that we provided.  This year’s 
compilation is available together with the data it supports at 

13



 

 

http://www.harrow.gov.uk/info/200041/equality_and_diversity/863/public_s
ector_equality_duty 

 
 
 
 
Developing and Publishing Equality Objectives 

 
12. In order to meet the second requirement of the PSED, ‘Equality 

Objectives’ were developed based on the research and consultation 
undertaken and the equalities information/data published.  
 

13. The draft Equality Objectives were the subject of public consultation 
including an online questionnaire for staff and elected members and a 
separate questionnaire for members of the public, service users, voluntary 
and community groups, partners and stakeholders and the questionnaire 
was also sent out to the Residents Panel.  As part of the consultation 
workshops for staff and voluntary and community groups, partners and 
stakeholders also took place. A cross party briefing was also held for 
elected members.  The consultation produced support for the proposed 
Objectives which were adopted by Cabinet in April 2012. 

 
14. In light of the change in Administration, the objectives (Appendix 1) have 

been reviewed to ensure they support they are still relevant to and support 
the corporate plan.  

 
Measuring our Performance against the Corporate Equality Objectives 

 
15. In line with the existing performance process, directorates produce 

quarterly progress reports against their directorate scorecards for the 
Improvement Boards.  These form the basis of annual progress reports. 
This will not only mainstream equalities within existing processes and 
service plans but also adhere to the COUNT (collate once use numerous 
times) principle. 

 
Financial Implications 
All costs are contained within existing budgets. 
 
Performance Issues 
How we perform against the Corporate Equality Objectives is monitored via 
the Council’s existing performance process via Improvement Boards and 
reported to Cabinet via the Strategic Performance Report.  
 
Environmental Impact 
There are no direct environmental impacts of this decision. 
 
Risk Management Implications 
There are no direct risk management implications of this decision. 
 
Equalities Implications 
The ‘Equality Objectives’ will address inequality, advance equality of 
opportunity and foster good relations and help the Council to comply with the 

14



 

 

statutory requirements of the Public Sector Equality Duty introduced by the 
Equality Act 2010.  
 
Council Priorities 
The ‘Equality Objectives’ support all the Council’s Corporate Priorities. 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
Not required. 

 

 

 

Ward Councillors notified: 

 

 

 NO  
 

 

 
 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
 

Contact:  Mohammed Ilyas, Policy Officer, Ext.2322 

 
Background Papers:   
‘Our Harrow, Our Story’ 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/info/200041/equality_and_diversity/863/public_sect
or_equality_duty  

15



16

This page is intentionally left blank



  

  
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o

rt
 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

 
M

e
e
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 S
e
c
to

r 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

 
 

 

17



1
 

F
o
re

w
o

rd
 

W
e
lc

o
m

e
 t
o

 o
u

r 
la

te
s
t 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 w
h

ic
h
 

o
u

tl
in

e
s
 o

u
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
g
a

in
s
t 
o

u
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
. 
 

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 o
u

r 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 

a
d

v
a

n
c
in

g
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
, 

e
lim

in
a
ti
n

g
 u

n
la

w
fu

l 
d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 g

o
o
d

 r
e
la

ti
o
n

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
k
e

 u
p
 H

a
rr

o
w

. 
 I

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
a

s
e

 
s
tu

d
ie

s
 i
llu

s
tr

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 w

id
e

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

w
o

rk
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
h

ic
h
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

s
 t

o
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
; 
fo

r 
c
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
; 
fo

r 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 
b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
. 

E
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
d

e
s
c
ri
b
in

g
 a

 v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

re
a

 t
h

a
t 

is
 b

u
ilt

 o
n

 
re

c
o

g
n

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
e

v
e

ry
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
, 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

h
e

s
io

n
, 
fa

ir
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 j
u

s
ti
c
e
. 

H
a
rr

o
w

 p
ri
d

e
s
 i
ts

e
lf
 

in
 b

e
in

g
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 m
o
s
t 

e
th

n
ic

a
lly

 a
n

d
 r

e
lig

io
u

s
ly

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 c
o
u

n
tr

y
 w

it
h

 p
e

o
p

le
 o

f 
m

a
n

y
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

b
a

c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
s
 a

n
d

 l
if
e

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

s
 l
iv

in
g
 s

id
e

 b
y
 s

id
e

. 
A

s
 a

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l
e

a
d

e
r,

 w
e

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

p
u

b
lic

, 
v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

rs
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 w

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
 

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
o
u

r 
b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 

W
e
 h

o
p
e

 t
h

a
t 

y
o

u
 w

ill
 f

in
d

 t
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
n
te

re
s
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
v
e

, 
a

n
d

 w
e

 s
u

s
p
e

c
t 
th

a
t 
y
o

u
 m

a
y
 b

e
 s

u
rp

ri
s
e
d

 b
y
 j
u

s
t 

h
o

w
 m

u
c
h

 i
s
 

d
o

n
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
e
q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 t
o

 c
e

le
b

ra
te

 t
h
e

 
B

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
. 
W

e
 f

e
e

l 
th

a
t 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

c
a

n
 b

e
 p

ro
u

d
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

ts
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

is
 r

e
p
o

rt
 w

h
ic

h
 b

u
ild

 o
n

 o
u

r 
fi
rm

 
c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 p
ro

m
o

te
 f

a
ir
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
, 

a
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 o
u

r 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n

. 
W

e
 k

n
o

w
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 i
s
 

s
o

m
e
th

in
g
 t

o
 v

a
lu

e
 a

n
d

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 

o
u

r 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 m
a

in
ta

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 b
u

ild
in

g
 o

n
 o

u
r 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

s
 b

y
 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 a

re
 i
n

te
g
ra

l 
to

 e
v
e

ry
th

in
g
 w

e
 d

o
. 

  

 T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 y

o
u

 w
it
h

 d
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

e
 a

re
 

m
a

k
in

g
 i
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 o

u
r 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
a

m
b

it
io

n
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
is

 f
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
a
h

e
a

d
. 
  

 
    

 C
o

u
n

c
il
lo

r 
S

a
c
h

in
 S

h
a
h

  
L

e
a
d

e
r 

o
f 

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 
     

    
C

o
u

n
c
il
lo

r 
V

a
rs

h
a
 P

a
rm

a
r 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r 
fo

r 
P

u
b

li
c
 H

e
a

lt
h

, 
E

q
u

a
li
ty

 a
n

d
 W

e
ll
b

e
in

g
 

 

        

 

                   

 
 M

ic
h

a
e
l 
L

o
c
k
w

o
o

d
  

C
h

ie
f 

E
x

e
c
u

ti
v

e
, 

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 
 

 

    

 

18



  
2

 

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

 
 H

a
rr

o
w

 i
s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 m
o

s
t 

e
th

n
ic

a
lly

 a
n

d
 r

e
lig

io
u

s
ly

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

in
 L

o
n

d
o
n

 w
it
h

 p
e

o
p

le
 o

f 
m

a
n

y
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
s
 a

n
d

 l
if
e
 

e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

s
 l
iv

in
g
 s

id
e

 b
y
 s

id
e

. 
 I

t 
is

 t
h
e

 r
ic

h
n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
, 

a
n

d
 

th
e

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

th
a

t 
it
 h

a
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
n

d
 o

u
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
, 

th
a

t 
w

e
 b

e
lie

v
e

 h
e

lp
s
 m

a
k
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 s
u

c
h

 a
 g

re
a

t 
p

la
c
e

 t
o

 l
iv

e
, 

w
o

rk
 

a
n

d
 v

is
it
. 

 W
e
 k

n
o

w
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 i
s
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g
 t
o

 v
a

lu
e

 
a

n
d

 e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

is
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
O

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 P

o
lic

y
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 o

u
r 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 m
a

in
ta

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 b
u

ild
in

g
 o

n
 o

u
r 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

s
 b

y
 e

n
s
u

ri
n
g
 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
s
 i
n

te
g
ra

l 
to

 e
v
e

ry
th

in
g

 w
e

 d
o

. 
 In

 s
e

rv
in

g
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

, 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
im

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 f

o
r 

it
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
, 

e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
, 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
n
e

r 
o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

s
 

ir
re

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 o
f 

a
g
e

, 
d

is
a
b

ili
ty

, 
g
e

n
d

e
r 

re
a

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t,
 m

a
rr

ia
g
e

 a
n

d
 

c
iv

il 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

, 
p

re
g
n
a

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 m
a
te

rn
it
y
, 

ra
c
e

, 
re

lig
io

n
 o

r 
b
e

lie
f,

 s
e

x
 

a
n

d
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
o

ri
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

 H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 w

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

 t
h
a

t 
in

 o
u

r 
s
o
c
ie

ty
, 

g
ro

u
p

s
 a

n
d
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 b
e

 u
n

la
w

fu
lly

 d
is

c
ri
m

in
a

te
d

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

a
n
d

 w
e

 a
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 
o

u
r 

re
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 t
o

 e
lim

in
a

te
 u

n
la

w
fu

l 
d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 g
o

o
d

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 r

ic
h
 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

's
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
. 

 O
u
r 

C
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
d

e
s
c
ri
b
in

g
 a

 v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

re
a

 t
h

a
t 

is
 b

u
ilt

 o
n

 
re

c
o

g
n

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
e

v
e

ry
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
, 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 

a
n

d
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n
, 
fa

ir
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 j
u

s
ti
c
e

. 
 A

s
 a

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 l
e

a
d

e
r,

 w
e

 w
ill

 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 p
u

b
lic

, 
v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 p

ri
v
a

te
 

s
e

c
to

rs
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 w

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
 v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

o
u

r 
b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
 A

s
 a

n
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

r,
 w

e
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 e

m
p

lo
y
in

g
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
, 

to
 h

e
lp

 u
s
 t

o
 u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 a
n
d

 r
e
la

te
 t
o

 t
h
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 w

e
 s

e
rv

e
. 

 
T

h
ro

u
g
h

 o
u

r 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
, 

w
e

 w
ill

 a
im

 t
o

 

im
p

ro
v
e

 o
n

 o
u

r 
re

c
o

rd
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

lo
re

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 

to
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
p
p

lic
a

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
s
e

c
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

jo
in

in
g
 u

s
. 
 

 A
s
 a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r,

 w
e

 a
re

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 o

u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 

o
p

e
n

, 
fa

ir
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 b

y
 t

a
k
in

g
 i
n

to
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 t
h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d
 

re
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

o
u

r 
d
iv

e
rs

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
. 

 W
e
 w

ill
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 

Im
p
a

c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
(E

q
IA

) 
p
ro

c
e

s
s
, 

e
n

g
a

g
in

g
 w

it
h

 a
n

d
 l
is

te
n

in
g
 t

o
 

o
u

r 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
. 

 
 A

s
 a

 p
ro

c
u

re
r 

o
f 

g
o

o
d

s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

w
e

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 o

u
r 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

re
 f
a

ir
 a

n
d

 e
q
u

it
a
b

le
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

n
 o

u
r 

b
e

h
a

lf
 s

h
a

re
 o

u
r 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
. 

 
 

T
h
e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 A

c
t 
2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 S
e
c
to

r 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

 
(P

S
E

D
) 

 T
h
e

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 A

c
t 

2
0

1
0

 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
e

d
 a

 n
e

w
 P

u
b

lic
 S

e
c
to

r 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

 
(P

S
E

D
) 

w
h

ic
h
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

s
 p

u
b

lic
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
, 

in
 t

h
e

 e
x
e

rc
is

e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

fu
n

c
ti
o
n

s
, 

to
 h

a
v
e

 d
u

e
 r

e
g
a

rd
 t

o
 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
: 

 
 §
 

E
lim

in
a

te
 u

n
la

w
fu

l 
d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
, 

h
a

ra
s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 v

ic
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n

 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

c
o
n
d

u
c
t 
p

ro
h

ib
it
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
c
t;
 

§
 

A
d

v
a

n
c
e

 e
q
u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o

 s
h

a
re

 a
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 a

n
d
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t;

 a
n
d

 
§
 

F
o
s
te

r 
g
o

o
d
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 s

h
a

re
 a

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
s
e

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t.
  

 
 T

h
e

 P
S

E
D

 i
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 b
y
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 d
u

ti
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 i
n
te

n
d

e
d

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 
p

u
b

lic
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
it
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
. 

 
 

T
h
e

 n
e

w
 P

S
E

D
 r

e
p

la
c
e

s
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 t
h

re
e

 P
u

b
lic

 S
e

c
to

r 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 

D
u
ti
e
s
 –

 f
o

r 
ra

c
e
, 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 g

e
n

d
e

r 
a

n
d
 n

o
w

 c
o

v
e

rs
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
: 

19



3
 

§
 

A
g
e

 
§
 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 
§
 

G
e

n
d
e

r 
R

e
a

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t 
§
 

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 M
a

te
rn

it
y
 

§
 

R
a
c
e

 –
 t
h

is
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

s
 e

th
n

ic
 o

r 
n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
o

ri
g
in

s
, 

c
o

lo
u

r 
o

r 
n
a
ti
o

n
a

lit
y
 

§
 

R
e
lig

io
n

 o
r 

B
e

lie
f 

–
 t

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
b

e
lie

f 
§
 

S
e

x
 

§
 

S
e

x
u

a
l 
O

ri
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

It
 a

ls
o
 a

p
p

lie
s
 t

o
 M

a
rr

ia
g
e

 a
n

d
 C

iv
il 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 b
u

t 
o
n

ly
 i
n

 r
e
s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

th
e

 r
e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 h

a
v
e

 d
u
e

 r
e
g
a

rd
 t
o

 t
h
e

 n
e
e

d
 t
o

 e
lim

in
a

te
 

d
is

c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o
n

. 

P
u

b
lic

 a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 c

o
v
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 d
u

ti
e

s
 a

re
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
: 

§
 

P
u

b
lis

h
 b

y
 t

h
e

 3
1

s
t  J

a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
2

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
o

 d
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 t
h

e
ir
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 g
e
n

e
ra

l 
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 d

u
ty

; 
a

n
d

 
§
 

P
re

p
a

re
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
lis

h
 b

y
 6

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

2
, 

a
n

d
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
e

v
e

ry
 f

o
u

r 
y
e

a
rs

 
th

e
re

a
ft

e
r 

o
n

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 

 

O
u
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s

 

In
 e

a
rl
y
 2

0
1

5
, 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
a

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 f
e

e
d
b

a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
, 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

, 
H

a
rr

o
w

 p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

n
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 s

e
t 

o
f 

s
e

v
e

n
 E

q
u
a

lit
y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 i
n

 ‘
H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
5

-
1

9
, 
W

o
rk

in
g
 T

o
g
e

th
e

r 
to

 M
a
k
e

 a
 D

if
fe

re
n

c
e

 f
o
r 

H
a
rr

o
w

’ 
(a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

h
e

re
).

 
 T

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 v

is
io

n
 t
h

u
s
: 

 
 

“
W

o
rk

in
g

 T
o

g
e

th
e

r 
to

 M
a

k
e

 a
 D

if
fe

re
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
H

a
rr

o
w

”
 

 
T

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

is
 v

is
io

n
, 

th
e

re
 a

re
 f

o
u

r 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
g
u

id
e

 h
o
w

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

ta
rg

e
ts

 i
ts

 r
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 e

ff
o

rt
s
. 

T
h
e

s
e

 a
re

 s
h

o
w

n
 b

e
lo

w
 

a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

lig
n

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
m

. 
 

 
      R

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 &

 S
e
tt
in

g
 P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

T
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p
o

rt
 o

u
tl
in

e
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 

A
s
 

w
e

ll 
a

s
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g
 o

u
r 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 (
A

p
p

e
n
d

ix
 1

) 
it
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
ie

s
 t

o
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 h
o

w
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 u
s
e

d
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 d

a
ta

 t
o
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 a
 n

e
e
d

, 
e
n

g
a

g
e

 w
it
h

 o
u

r 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
u

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 O
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 w

a
y
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 i
s
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
w

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 

th
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 s

e
t 

o
u

rs
e
lv

e
s
. 

T
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

n
 o

v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
h

o
w

 m
a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 e
a

c
h

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 w
e

re
 G

re
e

n
, 

A
m

b
e

r 
a
n
d

 R
e
d

, 
u

s
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 c

ri
te

ri
a

: 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t

h
a

t 
fe

e
ls

 v
a

lu
e

d
, 
re

s
p

e
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 

re
fl
e
c
ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
e

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 w

e
 s

e
rv

e
 

 

20



4
 

 H
ig

h
 G

re
e

n
: 

 
T

a
rg

e
t 
e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d
 b

y
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 5
%

 
L

o
w

 G
re

e
n

: 
 

T
a

rg
e

t 
M

e
t 

A
m

b
e
r:

  
 

T
a

rg
e

t 
m

is
s
e
d
 b

y
 n

o
 m

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 5

%
 

L
o

w
 R

e
d

: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
m

is
s
e
d
 b

y
 5

-1
0
%

 
H

ig
h

 R
e
d

: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
m

is
s
e
d
 b

y
 o

v
e

r 
1
0

%
 

 E
a

c
h

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 g

iv
e

n
 a

n
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

‘R
A

G
’ 
s
ta

tu
s
 

u
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 c

ri
te

ri
a

: 
 

·
 

If
 t

w
o

 t
h

ir
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 w

it
h

in
 a

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 a
re

 a
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
s
ta

tu
s
 

th
e

n
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 d
e

te
rm

in
e
 i
ts

 s
ta

tu
s
. 

If
 n

o
t,

 t
h

e
n
 t
h

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 s
ta

tu
s
 w

ill
 

b
e

c
o
m

e
 A

m
b

e
r.

 
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 

P
ro

te
c
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 h

a
rm

fu
l 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
f 

c
ri
m

e
, 

a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r,

 s
ti
g
m

a
 a

n
d
 

a
b
u
s
e

 

 

G
re

e
n
 

3
 

A
m

b
e
r 

 

R
e
d
 

2
 

  O
v
e
ra

ll 
S

ta
tu

s
 

A
 

 K
e

y
 H

ig
h

lig
h

ts
: 

• 
A

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 1

8
 P

a
rk

 U
s
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
s
  

• 
T

h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

d
a

y
s
 t

o
 r

e
p

a
ir
 s

tr
e
e
t 

lig
h

ts
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

t 
3

  
w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 

 W
e
 d

id
n

’t
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
to

 t
ra

in
 1

1
0

0
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
 o

r 
th

e
 

q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

9
0

%
 o

f 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

c
a

s
e

s
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
 

p
e

r 
q
u

a
rt

e
r.

 

 
 P

a
rk

 U
s

e
r 

G
ro

u
p

s
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 P
a

rk
 U

s
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
s
’ 
(P

U
G

’s
) 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 g
ro

w
 a

n
d

 
fl
o
u

ri
s
h

, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
P

a
rk

 F
o
ru

m
 b

e
in

g
 a

 
m

e
c
h
a

n
is

m
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 g

o
o

d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 2
1
 p

a
rk

 u
s
e

r 
g
ro

u
p

s
. 

 T
h
a

n
k
s
 t
o

 a
ll 

th
e

 v
o

lu
n
te

e
rs

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 v

e
ry

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

to
 h

e
lp

 o
u

r 
p
a

rk
s
 a

n
d
 o

p
e

n
 s

p
a

c
e

s
 m

o
re

 a
tt

ra
c
ti
v
e

 t
o

 v
is

it
 a

n
d

 e
n

jo
y
, 

e
x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
th

is
 a

re
 t
h
e

s
e

 n
e

w
ly

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 P
U

G
’s

: 
 

·
 

F
ri
e
n

d
s
 o

f 
R

o
x
b

o
u

rn
e
 P

a
rk

 h
o

ld
in

g
 a

 p
u

b
lic

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 i
n

 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5
 t

o
 t
ry

 a
n

d
 a

tt
ra

c
t 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 s
ta

rt
 u

p
 a

 u
s
e

r 
g
ro

u
p

 w
it
h

 4
0

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

tt
e

n
d

in
g
 o

n
 a

 c
o

ld
 d

a
rk

 n
ig

h
t 

in
 t
h

e
 

P
a

v
ili

o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

id
d

le
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

. 
T

h
e

y
 n

o
w

 h
a

v
e

 o
v
e

r 
4
0

0
 

m
e
m

b
e

rs
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 h
e

ld
 s

e
v
e

ra
l 
e

v
e

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 d

o
g
’s

 s
h

o
w

s
 t

o
 

S
e

n
io

rs
 T

e
a

 P
a

rt
ie

s
. 

·
 

F
ri
e
n

d
s
 o

f 
Q

u
e

e
n

s
b

u
ry

 P
a

rk
 h

e
ld

 t
h

e
re

 s
ta

rt
 u

p
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 i
n

 
J
u

n
e

 o
f 

th
is

 y
e

a
r 

a
n
d

 h
a

v
e

 s
in

c
e

 b
e
e

n
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 w

it
h

 
Q

u
e

e
n

s
b

u
ry

 W
e
tl
a

n
d

 p
ro

je
c
t 

in
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 T
h

a
m

e
s
 2

1
 

a
n

d
 s

e
c
u

ri
n

g
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f
o

r 
p
a

rk
 b

e
n

c
h
e

s
 a

n
d

 b
u

lb
s
. 

·
 

F
ri
e
n

d
s
 o

f 
C

h
a

n
d

o
s
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n

 G
ro

u
n

d
 h

a
v
e
 o

v
e

r 
3
0

 p
e

o
p

le
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
n

g
 i
n

 r
e
g
u

la
r 

c
le

a
n

-u
p
 d

a
y
s
. 

 
O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
:  

E
n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 o

r 
o
n
 

b
e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 a
re

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
p
ir

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
a
ll 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

21



5
 

 

G
re

e
n
 

1
2
 

A
m

b
e
r 

 

R
e
d
 

 

  O
v
e
ra

ll 
S

ta
tu

s
 

G
 

 - 
 

- 
K

e
y
 H

ig
h

lig
h

ts
: 

·
 

1
0

0
%

 o
f 

c
a

re
rs

 w
it
h

 S
e

lf
 D

ir
e

c
te

d
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
a
k
in

g
 u

p
 D

ir
e

c
t 

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 

·
 

1
0

0
%

 c
a

re
rs

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 s
e

lf
 d

ir
e

c
te

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

·
 

8
4

.3
%

 o
f 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 c
lie

n
ts

 l
iv

e
 i
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e

n
tl
y
  

·
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
d
a

p
ta

ti
o
n

s
 -

 t
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 t
im

e
 t
a

k
e

n
 f

ro
m

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

to
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
  

 A
ll 

ta
rg

e
ts

 f
o

r 
th

is
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 w
e

re
 m

e
t 
o

r 
e
x
c
e
e

d
e
d

. 

 

B
S

L
 C

h
a

rt
e
r 

H
a
rr

o
w

 w
a

s
 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o
n
d

 L
o
n

d
o
n

 b
o

ro
u
g

h
 t
o

 s
ig

n
 u

p
 

to
 t

h
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 S
ig

n
 L

a
n
g

u
a
g

e
 C

h
a

rt
e
r 

a
n

d
 m

a
k
e

 a
 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 D

e
a

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
c
ro

s
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

 a
re

 g
iv

e
n

 
b

e
tt
e

r 
a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

T
h
e

 c
h
a

rt
e
r 

w
a

s
 s

ig
n

e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 l
e

a
d
e

r 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

D
a
v
id

 P
e

rr
y
, 

M
a

y
o

r 
o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

, 
C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
r 

K
ri
s
h

n
a

 S
u

re
s
h
, 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e
 M

ic
h

a
e

l 
L

o
c
k
w

o
o

d
, 
P

re
s
id

e
n

t 
o
f 

H
a

rr
o

w
 U

n
it
e

d
 D

e
a

f 
c
lu

b
 A

s
if
 I
q

b
a

l 
a

n
d

 D
r 

T
e
rr

y
 R

ile
y
 O

B
E

, 
C

h
a

ir
m

a
n

 o
f 

B
ri
ti
s
h

 D
e

a
f 

A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

 (
B

D
A

) 
o
n

 1
5

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0
1

5
 a

t 
th

e
 C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
. 

 

T
h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 h

a
s
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e

 D
e

a
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 w

o
rk

e
d

 w
it
h

 H
a

rr
o
w

 U
n

it
e

d
 D

e
a

f 
C

lu
b

 t
o

 i
n

tr
o
d
u

c
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 S
ig

n
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

 v
id

e
o
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 

w
e
b

s
it
e

 s
ig

n
p

o
s
ti
n

g
 w

h
e

re
 t
h

e
y
 c

a
n

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 
 

G
re

e
n
 

2
 

A
m

b
e
r 

 

R
e
d
 

2
 

 
O

v
e
ra

ll 
S

ta
tu

s
 

A
 

 
 

K
e

y
 H

ig
h

lig
h

ts
: 

·
 

1
8

5
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 i
n

to
 w

o
rk

, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
 

·
 

9
8

.3
%

 o
f 

1
6

-1
8

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 a

re
 i
n
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
(t

a
rg

e
t 

w
a

s
 9

7
%

0
 

 T
h
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
e
d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 (
D

fE
) 

c
h

a
n

g
e

d
 t
h

e
 K

S
2

 a
n
d

 K
S

4
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

, 
th

e
re

fo
re

, 
a

ll 
th

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 

b
a

s
e

lin
e
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 o

r 
R

A
G

 r
a
ti
n

g
. 

 O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
:  

M
in

im
is

e
 h

e
a

lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e

 B
o
ro

u
g
h

 
    

22



6
 

G
re

e
n
 

1
5
 

A
m

b
e
r 

1
 

R
e
d
 

 

 
O

v
e
ra

ll 
S

ta
tu

s
 

G
 

 K
e

y
 H

ig
h

lig
h

ts
: 

 

·
 

P
ro

v
id

e
d

 2
3

 n
e

w
 g

re
e

n
 g

y
m

s
 

·
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

a
d

u
lt
s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n

g
 i
n

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

  
  

a
c
ti
v
e

 r
e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 2
0

.4
0

%
 (

ta
rg

e
t 

w
a

s
 1

9
.7

%
) 

·
 

R
e
d

u
c
e
d

 t
h
e

 p
e

rc
e
n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

m
o
th

e
rs

 w
h

o
 s

m
o

k
e

 a
t 

th
e

 t
im

e
 o

f 
  

  
d
e

liv
e

ry
 t

o
 4

.3
%

 (
ta

rg
e

t 
w

a
s
 5

%
) 

 A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

ta
rg

e
ts

 s
e

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

w
e

re
 m

e
t 

o
r 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

, 
m

o
re

 n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

o
n
e

 t
o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 h

e
a

lt
h
 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
n

 
H

a
rr

o
w

, 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
ic

k
e

d
 u

p
 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
s
. 

 
C

h
il

d
h

o
o

d
 O

b
e
s

it
y
 a

n
d

 H
e
a

lt
h

y
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
  

C
h
ild

h
o

o
d

 o
b

e
s
it
y
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 
 T

h
e
 D

a
ily

 M
ile

 i
s
 a

 n
e
w

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
 

b
e

in
g
 i
n

tr
o
d
u

c
e

d
 i
n

 H
a
rr

o
w

 a
n

d
 o

u
r 

a
s
p

ir
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 t

h
a

t 
e

v
e

ry
 c

h
ild

 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 w
ill

 w
a

lk
 o

r 
ru

n
 f
o

r 
a
 m

ile
 e

v
e

ry
 

d
a

y
 (

ro
u
g

h
ly

 1
5

 m
in

u
te

s
 e

x
tr

a
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 e

a
c
h

 d
a

y
).

  
T

h
e

 i
d
e

a
 

s
te

m
s
 f

ro
m

 w
o

rk
 d

o
n

e
 i
n
 S

c
o

tl
a
n

d
 t
h

a
t 

s
h
o

w
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
n
o

t 
o

n
ly

 w
a

s
 t
h

e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 w

h
o

 w
e

re
 

o
v
e

rw
e

ig
h

t 
o

r 
o
b

e
s
e
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
b

u
t 
a

ls
o
 s

h
o
w

e
d

 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r,

 a
tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
. 

 
T

h
e

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

ilo
te

d
 i
n
 t
w

o
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n
it
ia

lly
 a

n
d
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 a

 d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 P

S
H

E
 l
e

a
d

s
, 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 i
n

 t
h

e
 N

e
w

 Y
e
a

r.
  

T
h
is

 n
e
w

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ts

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 
b

e
in

g
 d

o
n

e
 b

y
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

 t
o

 g
a

in
 t
h

e
ir
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 s

ta
tu

s
. 

 C
u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

2
7

 s
c
h
o

o
ls

 a
re

 a
t 
B

ro
n
z
e

 a
w

a
rd

 l
e

v
e

l 
a
n

d
 1

2
 a

t 
S

ilv
e

r 
A

w
a

rd
 l
e

v
e

l.
  

W
e

 a
re

 h
o

p
in

g
 f

o
r 

o
u

r 
fi
rs

t 
G

o
ld

 A
w

a
rd

 S
c
h
o

o
l 
b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 s
u

m
m

e
r.

 

O
u

td
o

o
r 

G
y
m

s
 

o
u

td
o

o
r 

g
y
m

s
 a

re
 

a
 n

e
w

 w
a

y
 t

o
 

lo
o

k
 a

t 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

fi
tn

e
s
s
 o

ff
e

ri
n

g
 a

 l
o

t 
o
f 
th

e
 

s
a

m
e
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 

y
o

u
 w

o
u

ld
 f

in
d

 
in

 a
n

 i
n

d
o
o

r 
g
y
m

, 
b

u
t 

in
 t

h
e

 
g
re

a
t 

o
u

td
o

o
rs

. 
B

e
s
t 
o
f 

a
ll,

 
th

e
y
’r
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

ly
 f

re
e
! 

T
w

e
n

ty
 

th
re

e
 p

a
rk

s
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 h
a

v
e

 o
u

td
o

o
r 

g
y
m

 e
q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 

tw
e
lv

e
 p

a
rk

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 L

o
n

d
o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

H
ill

in
g
d

o
n

 a
n
d

 s
ix

 i
n
 B

re
n
t.

  
 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 

 

G
re

e
n
 

7
 

A
m

b
e
r 

 

R
e
d
 

 

  O
v
e
ra

ll 
S

ta
tu

s
 

G
 

 K
e

y
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
: 

 ·
 

2
3

5
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 i
n

to
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
(j
o

b
 b

ro
k
e

ra
g
e

 a
n

d
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

) 

·
 

8
5

1
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

·
 

1
8

.9
%

 a
d
u

lt
s
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 p

a
id

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

·
 

6
.8

%
 o

f 
M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 c
lie

n
ts

 i
n
 p

a
id

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

·
 

T
h
e

 R
e

s
p
o

n
s
iv

e
 R

e
p

a
ir
s
 C

o
n

tr
a
c
to

rs
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 9

 a
p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
 

(t
a
rg

e
t 

w
a

s
 7

) 
 

 

23



7
 

A
ll 

ta
rg

e
ts

 f
o

r 
th

is
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 w
e

re
 e

it
h

e
r 

m
e

t 
o
r 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

. 

 
X

c
it

e
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 –

 c
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
y
 o

f 
a
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s

e
r 

I 
m

e
t 
m

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
A

d
v
is

o
r 

fr
o
m

 X
c
it
e

, 
th

ro
u

g
h

 m
y
 W

o
rk

 C
o

a
c
h

 a
t 

H
a

rr
o

w
 J

C
P

. 
A

t 
th

is
 t

im
e

 I
 w

a
s
 o

n
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

, 
d

u
e

 t
o

 a
n

 i
s
s
u
e

 w
it
h

 m
y
 t

h
ro

a
t,

 m
y
 s

p
e

e
c
h
 w

a
s
 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 q

u
it
e

 b
a
d

ly
, 

th
is

 h
a

d
 a

 h
u

g
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 
o

n
 m

y
 s

e
lf
-

c
o

n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

, 
I 
d

id
n

’t
 w

a
n

t 
to

 t
a

lk
 o

u
t 

lo
u

d
. 

 
 T

h
o

m
a

s
 a

n
d

 I
 m

e
t 
a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 m
y
 e

n
ro

lm
e

n
t.

 A
 w

e
e

k
 l
a

te
r 

w
e

 
h

a
d

 a
 1

-1
, 

w
h

e
re

 w
e

 s
p

o
k
e

 t
h

o
u

g
h

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
s
e

c
to

rs
. 
T

h
o
m

a
s
 a

ls
o
 a

s
k
e

d
 m

e
 a

b
o
u

t 
m

y
 h

e
a

lt
h
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
, 

a
n

d
 m

a
d

e
 m

e
 f

e
e

l 
c
o
m

fo
rt

a
b

le
 e

n
o
u

g
h

 t
o

 b
e

 o
p

e
n

 a
n

d
 

h
o

n
e

s
t 

w
it
h

 h
im

. 
T

h
is

 m
a

d
e

 m
e

 f
e

e
l 
v
e

ry
 c

o
m

fo
rt

a
b

le
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
fi
d

e
n
t 

T
h
o

m
a

s
 k

n
e

w
 m

y
 a

b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

t 
th

a
t 
ti
m

e
. 

 
 A

ft
e

r 
a
 f

e
w

 m
o

re
 1

-1
’s

, 
w

h
e

re
 T

h
o

m
a

s
 t
a

u
g
h

t 
m

e
 h

o
w

 t
o

 j
o

b
 s

e
a

rc
h
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 m
y
 c

o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
a
 j
o

b
 i
n

te
rv

ie
w

, 
I 

d
e

c
id

e
d

 t
o
 c

h
o
o

s
e

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 o
p

ti
o
n

, 
w

h
e

re
 I

 w
a

s
 b

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 
a

n
 s

m
a

ll 
a

c
c
o

u
n
ta

n
c
y
 f
ir
m

 i
n

 E
d

g
w

a
re

, 
R

u
n

u
 &

 C
o

. 
T

h
o

m
a

s
 c

a
lle

d
 

th
e

 m
a
n

a
g
e

r 
a
n
d

 e
x
p

la
in

e
d

 m
y
 h

e
a

lt
h

 c
o
n

d
it
io

n
, 

w
h

ic
h
 m

a
d

e
 m

y
 

in
te

rv
ie

w
 v

e
ry

 c
o

m
fo

rt
a
b

le
 a

s
 I

 w
a

s
 n

o
t 

n
e

rv
o

u
s
 o

r 
e

m
b

a
rr

a
s
s
e
d

. 
T

h
e

 1
 d

a
y
 w

o
rk

 e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 w
a

s
 e

n
o

u
g
h

 t
o

 g
iv

e
 m

e
 t

h
a

t 
b

o
o

s
t 

to
 

p
u

s
h

 m
y
s
e

lf
 a

n
d

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 m
o

re
. 

 
 A

ft
e

r 
s
o
m

e
 t

im
e

 j
o
b

-s
e
a

rc
h
in

g
, 

I 
g
a

in
e
d

 a
 p

e
rm

a
n
e

n
t 
a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
to

r 
jo

b
 a

t 
a

n
 a

rc
h
it
e

c
t’
s
 c

o
m

p
a
n

y
, 

I 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 t
h
e

re
 f

o
r 

6
 m

o
n

th
s
 a

n
d

 
lo

v
in

g
 i
t.

  
 T

h
a

n
k
 y

o
u

 X
c
it
e

 f
o

r 
le

a
d

in
g
 m

e
 i
n

 t
h
e

 r
ig

h
t 

d
ir
e

c
ti
o

n
. 

 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 p

ri
d
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
o

u
r 

B
o
ro

u
g
h

 
 

G
re

e
n
 

1
 

A
m

b
e
r 

 

R
e
d
 

 

  O
v
e
ra

ll 
S

ta
tu

s
 

G
 

 
 

K
e

y
 H

ig
h

lig
h

ts
: 

·
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
e
d

 1
0

 v
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

e
c
to

r 
e

v
e

n
ts

 
 A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 e

v
e

n
ts

 w
e

re
 o

rg
a

n
is

e
d

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 S

ta
ff

 M
a
k
in

g
 a

 D
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 G
ro

u
p

, 
a
n

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
, 

th
e

 a
im

 g
o

in
g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 i
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 c
o

lla
b
o

ra
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 
th

e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

e
c
to

r 
to

 d
e

liv
e

r 
jo

in
t 

e
v
e

n
ts

 
c
e

le
b

ra
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

. 
 

 
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 f
li

e
s

 t
h

e
 f

la
g

 
T

o
 c

e
le

b
ra

te
 L

G
B

T
 

H
is

to
ry

 m
o

n
th

 i
n

 F
e

b
 2

0
1

6
, 
th

e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

o
rg

a
n

is
e
d

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

e
v
e

n
ts

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 f

ly
in

g
 t
h

e
 r

a
in

b
o
w

 f
la

g
 

o
u

ts
id

e
 t

h
e

 C
iv

ic
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
o

n
th

 o
f 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
. 

 
 T

h
e

 l
a

u
n

c
h

 e
v
e
n

t 
w

a
s
 o

p
e
n

e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 C

E
O

 a
n
d

 
th

e
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 H
o

ld
e

r 
fo

r 
E

q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
tt

e
n

d
e
d

 
b

y
 o

v
e

r 
1

0
0
 s

ta
ff
 a

n
d

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

. 
O

th
e

r 
e
v
e

n
ts

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 a

 f
ilm

 s
c
re

e
n

in
g

 o
f 
‘’P

ra
y
e

rs
 f

o
r 

B
o

b
b

y
’ 
a

n
d

 a
n

 
L

G
B

T
 q

u
iz

. 

24



8
 

 O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t

h
a
t 

fe
e
ls

 v
a
lu

e
d
, 

re
s
p
e
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 w

e
 s

e
rv

e
  

G
re

e
n
 

2
 

A
m

b
e
r 

1
 

R
e
d
 

5
 

  O
v
e
ra

ll 
S

ta
tu

s
 

R
 

K
e

y
 H

ig
h

lig
h

ts
: 

§
 

W
e
 s

ig
n

e
d

 u
p
 t

o
 S

to
n

e
w

a
lls

 D
iv

e
rs

it
y
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

ir
 W

o
rk

p
la

c
e

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 I

n
d
e

x
 

§
 

C
o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
 S

ta
ff

 m
a
k
in

g
 a

 D
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 G
ro

u
p

 
(M

A
D

G
) 

w
h

o
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
d

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 o

rg
a

n
is

e
d

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 e

v
e

n
ts

  
§
 

W
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 t
h
e

 t
o

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e

a
rn

e
rs

 w
h

o
 a

re
 w

o
m

e
n

 t
o

 5
3

.6
8

%
 

(t
a
rg

e
t 

w
a

s
 5

0
%

) 

T
h
e

 c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

is
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
o

p
 5

%
 

o
f 

e
a

rn
e

rs
 w

h
o

 a
re

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 B

la
c
k
 A

s
ia

n
 M

in
o

ri
ty

 E
th

n
ic

 (
B

A
M

E
) 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
s
e
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 d

is
a
b

ili
ty

. 
 

 T
h
e

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
n
d

a
to

ry
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

ls
o
 

re
m

a
in

s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t,

 b
u

t 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

o
n

e
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t
h

is
. 

     

 
 

 C
o

a
c

h
in

g
 a

n
d

 M
e

n
to

ri
n

g
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 l
a

u
n

c
h
e

d
 a

n
 i
n
te

rn
a

l 
C

o
a

c
h

in
g

 P
o
o

l 
in

 
2

0
1
5

. 
T

h
e

 d
ro

p
 i
n

 s
e

s
s
io

n
 w

a
s
 a

 g
re

a
t 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 a

p
p

lie
d
 t

o
 b

e
 t

ra
in

e
d

 a
s
 C

o
a

c
h

e
s
. 

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 1

9
 

s
ta

ff
 a

re
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 1

to
1
 c

o
a

c
h

in
g

 a
n

d
 o

n
e

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

is
 b

e
in

g
 

M
e

n
to

re
d

. 
D

u
e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 a
 s

e
c
o

n
d
 c

o
h
o

rt
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

b
o

u
t 

to
 s

ta
rt

 t
h

e
ir
 t

ra
in

in
g

. 
 S

e
e

 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 b

e
lo

w
 f

ro
m

 s
ta

ff
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 C

o
a
c
h

in
g

: 
 “T

o
 b

e
 v

e
ry

 h
o
n

e
s
t 
I 

c
a
n

 r
e
a

lly
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 t

h
is

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

 T
h
is

 h
a

s
 s

o
 

fa
r 

h
e

lp
e

d
 m

e
 t

o
 r

e
g

a
in

 m
y
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 t
o

 a
llo

w
 m

y
s
e

lf
 t

o
 b

e
 t
h
e

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
r 

I 
h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 b

e
. 

 I
t 

is
 g

re
a

t 
to

 f
o

r 
s
o
m

e
o

n
e

 t
o

 l
is

te
n

 
a

n
d

 g
iv

e
 a

s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

in
g

s
 y

o
u

 m
ig

h
t 

n
e
v
e

r 
th

in
k
 o

f.
 

 “J
u
s
t 

w
o

u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 s

a
y
 t
h

a
t 

m
y
 c

o
a

c
h

in
g

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
in

v
a

lu
a

b
le

 t
o
 m

e
. 

 A
s
 a

 f
ir
s
t-

ti
m

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
r,

 m
y
 c

o
a

c
h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

y
 

re
d

e
m

p
ti
o

n
. 

S
h

e
 l
is

te
n
s
 p

a
ti
e
n

tl
y
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
is

e
s
 i
n

 s
u

c
h
 a

 w
a

y
, 

th
a

t 
m

a
k
e

s
 m

e
 t

h
in

k
 o

f 
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
m

y
s
e

lf
. 

S
h

e
 h

a
s
 i
n

s
ti
lle

d
 i
n
 m

e
 t

h
e

 
v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

ta
k
in

g
 a

 s
te

p
 b

a
c
k
 a

n
d

 d
e

a
lin

g
 w

it
h

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

it
h

 v
e

ry
 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
”.

 
 

W
a
y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 a
n
d
 R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
  

In
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 b
u

ild
 o

n
 t
h

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

o
u

r 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
, 

in
 

lin
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 f

o
r 

s
o
m

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e
v
ie

w
e

d
. 

S
o

m
e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
, 

s
lig

h
tl
y
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

 a
n
d

 n
e

w
 o

n
e

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 r

e
le

v
a

n
c
e

. 
T

h
e

 
re

v
is

e
d

 P
Is

 f
o

r 
2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
u

r 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 

a
re

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n
 A

p
p

e
n
d

ix
 2

. 
 

 In
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0

1
5
, 

th
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 G

ro
u

p
 (

C
E

G
) 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d

 a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

o
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 

25



  
9

 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 h

o
w

 w
e
 c

a
n
 s

tr
e
a
m

lin
e

 a
n
d

 
im

p
ro

v
e

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 t

a
k
in

g
 i
n

to
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 t
h

e
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 r
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

, 
n

e
w

 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

 v
a

lu
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 s

o
 w

e
 a

re
 

c
le

a
r 

w
h

a
t 

th
e
 f

o
c
u

s
 a

n
d

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f
o

r 
e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e
 w

ill
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
is

 a
g
e

n
d

a
. 

 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 n
u

m
b
e

r 
o
f 

w
o

rk
s
h
o

p
s
 a

n
d
 i
n

-d
e
p

th
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

, 
a

 ‘
v
is

io
n

’ 
a

n
d

 a
 s

e
t 

o
f 

re
v
is

e
d

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 w

e
re

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 

a
n

d
 p

re
s
e
n

te
d

 t
o
 t

h
e

 C
E

G
 a

n
d

 a
g
re

e
d

. 
T

h
e

re
 w

e
re

 t
h

e
n

 a
g
re

e
d

 b
y
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
a

n
d

 F
u

ll 
C

o
u
n
c
il.

  
 V

is
io

n
: 

A
 P

ro
u

d
, 

F
a
ir
 &

 C
o

h
e

s
iv

e
 H

a
rr

o
w

, 
a

 G
re

a
t 

P
la

c
e

 t
o

 L
iv

e
, 

W
o
rk

 &
 V

is
it
 

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
q

u
a
li

ty
 O

b
je

c
ti

v
e

s
 

 ·
 

A
n

 i
n

c
lu

s
iv

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
h

a
t 
fe

e
ls

 v
a

lu
e
d

, 
re

s
p
e

c
te

d
 a

n
d

 r
e
fl
e

c
ts

 
o

u
r 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
  

 

·
 

A
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
o

u
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

a
re

 f
a

ir
, 
e

q
u

it
a

b
le

 a
n
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 a
ll 

a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 

 

·
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 a
n

d
 c

e
le

b
ra

te
 t

h
e

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
o

u
r 

B
o
ro

u
g
h

 a
n
d

 f
o

s
te

r 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n
 

 A
n

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
b
o

v
e

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 i
s
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
. 

A
s
 t
h

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
e

 n
o
w

 
o

n
ly

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

re
e

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
, 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 t
ri
e

d
 t

o
 i
n
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 t
h
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 

n
o

t 
m

e
t 
in

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

 t
o
 t
h

is
 a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
. 

 

26



  
1

0
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 &

 D
iv

e
rs

it
y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 T

a
rg

e
ts

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

 
 

M
e

a
s

u
re

  
T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

A
c

tu
a

l 
2

0
1
5

/1
6
 

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 (
in

c
lu

d
e

 c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
(s

) 
w

h
e
re

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

) 
 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

: 
P

ro
te

c
t 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 h
a

rm
fu

l 
Im

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

c
ri
m

e
, 
a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r,

 s
ti
g
m

a
 a

n
d
 a

b
u

s
e

 

T
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

tr
a
in

e
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
 

1
1

0
0
 

1
0

5
8
 

L
R

 
 

A
v
e

ra
g
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
a
y
s
 t

o
 r

e
p

a
ir
 s

tr
e
e

t 
lig

h
ts

 

re
m

a
in

s
 a

t 
3

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s
 

3
 

3
 

H
G

 
 

T
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
c
ti
v
e

 p
a

rk
 u

s
e

r 
g
ro

u
p

s
 

1
4
 

1
8
 

H
G

 
 

T
h
e

 t
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

a
n
ti
s
o

c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

in
c
id

e
n

ts
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 (

5
 o

r 
le

s
s
 p

e
r 

q
u

a
rt

e
r)

 

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

=
 2

0
 

(0
.3

8
 o

r 

le
s
s
) 

1
9

.1
 (

 

0
.3

8
) 

 
 

L
G

 

 

9
0

%
 o

f 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

c
a
s
e

s
 

re
s
o

lv
e

d
 p

e
r 

q
u

a
rt

e
r.

 
9

0
%

 
8

3
%

 
L

R
 

 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

: 
E

n
s
u

re
 a

ll 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 o

r 
o
n

 b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 a
re

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
, 

re
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 a
s
p

ir
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
a

ll 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 m
a
d

e
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
9

2
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

o
u

r 
b
u

s
 s

to
p

s
 

D
D

A
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 
b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
 

9
2

%
 

9
3

%
 

L
G

 
 

A
d

u
lt
s
 -

 %
 o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 u

s
e

rs
 w

it
h

 S
e

lf
 D

ir
e
c
te

d
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 (

S
D

S
) 

ta
k
in

g
 u

p
 d

ir
e

c
t 
p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 

 

4
6

%
 

4
8

.1
%

 
L

G
 

W
e
 a

re
 p

le
a

s
e
d

 t
o
 h

a
v
e

 e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

 l
a

s
t 
y
e

a
r’
s
 o

u
tt
u

rn
 

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
ti
n

g
 o

u
r 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 c
a

s
h

 P
e

rs
o
n

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e

ts
. 

 

A
d

u
lt
s
 -

 %
 o

f 
c
a

re
rs

 w
it
h

 S
D

S
 t
a

k
in

g
 u

p
 d

ir
e

c
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 

 

9
5

%
 

1
0

0
%

 
H

G
 

D
u
e

 t
o
 a

ll 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 
fo

r 
c
a
re

rs
 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

) 
is

 i
n
 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

a
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b

u
d

g
e

t,
 t

h
e

 
re

s
u

lt
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 a
t 

1
0

0
%

.  

A
d

u
lt
s
 -

 %
 o

f 
c
a

re
rs

 w
h
o

 r
e
c
e

iv
e

 s
e

lf
-d

ir
e

c
te

d
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
  

9
5

%
 

1
0

0
%

 
H

G
 

D
u
e

 t
o
 a

ll 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 
fo

r 
c
a
re

rs
 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

) 
is

 i
n
 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

a
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b

u
d

g
e

t,
 t

h
e

 
re

s
u

lt
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 a
t 

1
0

0
%

. 

A
d

u
lt
s
 -

 %
 o

f 
M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 c
lie

n
ts

 l
iv

in
g
 

8
0

%
 

8
4

.3
%

 
H

G
 

D
u
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

 f
a

c
t 

th
a

t 
th

e
 d

a
ta

 p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 H

S
C

IC
 i
s
 

27



  
1

1
 

M
e

a
s

u
re

  
T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

A
c

tu
a

l 
2

0
1
5

/1
6
 

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 (
in

c
lu

d
e

 c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
(s

) 
w

h
e
re

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

) 
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
tl
y
  

m
o

re
 t
h

a
n

 t
w

o
 m

o
n

th
s
 o

u
t 
o
f 

d
a

te
, 

w
e

 c
o

n
ti
n
u
e

 t
o

 m
o
n

it
o

r 
a

 l
o

c
a

l 
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
d

ic
a
to

r 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 u

p
 t
o

 
d

a
te

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
c
lie

n
ts

 w
h

o
 w

e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
in

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o
n

. 
T

h
e

 
p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 d
a

ta
 w

ill
 b

e
 l
o

w
e

r 
a
s
 i
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 s

o
m

e
 c

lie
n

ts
 

p
la

c
e

d
 o

u
t 
o
f 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 i
n

 s
e

c
u

re
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 w

h
o

 
c
a

n
n
o

t 
w

o
rk

 o
r 

liv
e

 i
n

d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n

tl
y
. 

 

A
d

u
lt
s
 -

 E
q
u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

 (
ta

rg
e

t 

s
c
o

re
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 w
h

it
e

 a
n

d
 n

o
n

-w
h

it
e

 c
lie

n
ts

 i
n
 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 

lik
e

lih
o

o
d

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

).
 

A
 v

a
lu

e
  

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 
0

.9
-1

.1
 

0
.9

8
 

G
 

E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 i
n

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 b
e

 m
e

t.
 

N
o
 o

f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
m

e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

1
3

8
 

1
8

6
 

H
G

 
T

h
is

 e
x
c
e

e
d

s
 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
o
f 

1
3

8
 b

u
t 
fa

lls
 s

h
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 2

3
7

 
ta

rg
e

t 
w

h
ic

h
 c

a
s
c
a

d
e

s
 d

o
w

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o
n

 P
la

n
. 

%
 o

f 
fa

m
ily

-s
iz

e
d

 r
e
n

te
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
h

o
m

e
s
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

s
 a

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
s
o

c
ia

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 

1
5

%
 

1
6

%
 

L
G

 
1

6
 f
a

m
ily

 s
iz

e
d

 (
3
 b

e
d

 p
lu

s
) 

u
n

it
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 o
u

t 
o
f 

1
0

2
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
re

n
te

d
 u

n
it
s
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
d
a

p
ta

ti
o
n

s
: 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 t
im

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 f

ro
m

 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
to

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 o
f 

w
o

rk
s
 (

w
e

e
k
s
 )

 p
e

r 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
6
 

2
1
 

H
G

 

 

D
is

a
b

le
d

 F
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n

ts
: 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 t
im

e
 t
a

k
e
n

 

fr
o
m

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

to
 g

ra
n

t 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
(w

e
e

k
s
) 

p
e

r 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
4
 

1
0
 

H
G

 

 

T
h
e

 p
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

C
h

ild
re

n
 (

a
g
e

 0
-5

) 
liv

in
g
 i
n

 

th
e

 m
o

s
t 
d

e
p

ri
v
e

d
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 w
h

o
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
e
d

 C
h

ild
re

n
's

 C
e

n
tr

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 

8
0

%
 

8
5

%
 

H
G

 

  

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

: 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b
le

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 (

u
n
d

e
r 

2
5

) 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
e
d
 i
n

to
 w

o
rk

, 
1

0
0
 

1
8

5
 

H
G

 
 

28



  
1

2
 

M
e

a
s

u
re

  
T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

A
c

tu
a

l 
2

0
1
5

/1
6
 

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 (
in

c
lu

d
e

 c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
(s

) 
w

h
e
re

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

) 
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

r 
a
p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
 (

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

‘5
0

0
 p

le
d

g
e

’ 
w

ill
 b

e
 t

h
e
 d

a
ta

 s
o
u

rc
e

 

T
h

e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 (

D
fE

) 
c
h

a
n

g
e
d

 t
h

e
 K

S
2

 a
n

d
 K

S
4

 a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

5
-1

6
. 

T
h

e
re

fo
re

, 
a

ll
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s

u
lt

s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s

 b
e
lo

w
 a

re
 b

a
s

e
li

n
e

 a
n

d
 h

a
v

e
 n

o
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 o
r 

R
A

G
 r

a
ti

n
g

. 

E
a

rl
y
 Y

e
a

r 
F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 S

ta
g
e

 

T
h
e

 p
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 i
n

e
q
u
a

lit
y
 g

a
p

 i
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
th

e
 E

a
rl
y
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 G

o
a

ls
 a

t 
E

Y
F

S
 

 

N
/A

 

 2
9

.3
%

* 
 

N
/A

 

* 
P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

A
L
 R

e
s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

A
c
a

d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a

r 
2
0

1
5

/1
6

 
 H

a
rr

o
w

's
 2

0
1

5
-1

6
 g

a
p

 o
f 

2
9

.3
%

 h
a

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 3
0

.4
%

 
in

 2
0
1

4
-1

5
. 

 H
a

rr
o

w
's

 g
a

p
 i
s
 n

a
rr

o
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 n
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
(3

1
.4

%
) 

a
n

d
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

r 
(3

3
.1

%
) 

g
a
p
s
. 

 T
h
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
e
d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 (
D

fE
) 

c
h

a
n

g
e

d
 t
h

e
 K

S
2

 a
n
d

 
K

S
4

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 f
o

r 
2
0
1

5
-1

6
. 
T

h
e

re
fo

re
, 

a
ll 

o
f 

th
e

 r
e
s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 b

a
s
e

lin
e

 a
n

d
 h

a
v
e

 n
o
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 o
r 

R
A

G
 

ra
ti
n

g
. 

E
th

n
ic

 G
ro

u
p

s
 

 1
1

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 –

 H
a
rr

o
w

 r
e

s
u

lt
 6

0
%

; 
n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

re
s

u
lt

 5
2

%
. 

 

 a
)  

%
 B

la
c
k
 A

fr
ic

a
n

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 

(c
o
n

ta
in

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 3
0

 p
u

p
ils

) 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 

n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 i
n

 r
e
a

d
in

g
, 

w
ri
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 

m
a

th
e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

k
e

y
 s

ta
g
e

 2
 (

1
1

y
r 

o
ld

s
)  

 b
) 

%
 B

la
c
k
 C

a
ri
b

b
e

a
n
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 

(c
o
n

ta
in

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 3
0

 p
u

p
ils

) 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 

n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 i
n

 r
e
a

d
in

g
, 

w
ri
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 

  

N
/A

 

     a
) 

4
6

.6
%

 

   b
) 

3
7

.0
%

 

  

    

N
/A

 

  

T
h
e

s
e

 a
re

 P
R

O
V

IS
IO

N
A

L
 R

e
s
u

lt
s
 f
o

r 
A

c
a

d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a

r 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
. 
 

  R
e
s
u

lt
s
 b

y
 m

a
in

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
p

u
b

lis
h
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 

D
fE

 f
o

r 
E

n
g
la

n
d

 o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
.  

   

29



  
1

3
 

M
e

a
s

u
re

  
T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

A
c

tu
a

l 
2

0
1
5

/1
6
 

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 (
in

c
lu

d
e

 c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
(s

) 
w

h
e
re

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

) 
 

m
a

th
e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

k
e

y
 s

ta
g
e

 2
 (

1
1

y
r 

o
ld

s
) 

 c
)  

%
 A

n
y
 O

th
e

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 

e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 (
c
o
n

ta
in

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n
 3

0
 p

u
p

ils
) 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 i
n

 r
e
a

d
in

g
, 

w
ri
ti
n
g
 a

n
d

 m
a

th
e

m
a

ti
c
s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
k
e

y
 s

ta
g
e

 

2
 (

1
1

y
r 

o
ld

s
) 

 d
)  

%
 A

n
y
 O

th
e

r 
W

h
it
e

 B
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 

e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 (
c
o
n

ta
in

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n
 3

0
 p

u
p

ils
) 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 i
n

 r
e
a

d
in

g
, 

w
ri
ti
n
g
 a

n
d

 m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
k
e

y
 s

ta
g
e

 

2
 (

1
1

y
r 

o
ld

s
) 

 1
5

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 –

 H
a
rr

o
w

 r
e

s
u

lt
 5

2
.7

; 
N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

re
s

u
lt

 4
9

.9
.  

 a
)  

A
v
e

ra
g
e

 a
tt

a
in

m
e
n

t 
o
f 
B

la
c
k
 A

fr
ic

a
n
 

m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 (
c
o

n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 3

0
 

p
u

p
ils

) 
a

c
ro

s
s
 8

 G
C

S
E

 s
u

b
je

c
ts

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

K
e

y
 S

ta
g
e

 4
 

 b
)  

A
v
e

ra
g
e

 a
tt

a
in

m
e
n

t 
o
f 
B

la
c
k
 C

a
ri
b

b
e
a

n
 

m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 (
c
o

n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 3

0
 

p
u

p
ils

) 
a

c
ro

s
s
 8

 G
C

S
E

 s
u

b
je

c
ts

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

K
e

y
 S

ta
g
e

 4
 

  c
) 

O
n

ly
 2

5
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 

g
ro

u
p

.  

      d
)4

6
.5

%
 

         a
) 

4
9

.8
 

   b
) 

4
8

.3
 

  

30



  
1

4
 

M
e

a
s

u
re

  
T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

A
c

tu
a

l 
2

0
1
5

/1
6
 

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 (
in

c
lu

d
e

 c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
(s

) 
w

h
e
re

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

) 
 

 c
) 

A
v
e

ra
g
e

 a
tt

a
in

m
e
n

t 
o
f 
A

n
y
 O

th
e

r 
B

la
c
k
 

m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 (
c
o

n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 3

0
 

p
u

p
ils

) 
a

c
ro

s
s
 8

 G
C

S
E

 s
u

b
je

c
ts

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

K
e

y
 S

ta
g
e

 4
 

 d
) 

A
v
e

ra
g
e

 a
tt

a
in

m
e
n

t 
o
f 
A

n
y
 O

th
e

r 
W

h
it
e
 

m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

 (
c
o

n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 3

0
 

p
u

p
ils

) 
a

c
ro

s
s
 8

 G
C

S
E

 s
u

b
je

c
ts

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

K
e

y
 S

ta
g
e

 4
 

   c
) 

4
8

.5
 

    d
) 

4
8

.9
 

F
re

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
M

e
a

ls
 

 a
) 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

t 
g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

u
p

ils
 e

lig
ib

le
 

fo
r 

fr
e
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
m

e
a

ls
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 p

e
e

rs
, 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

%
 o

f 
p
u

p
ils

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 i
n
 

re
a

d
in

g
, 

w
ri
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

k
e

y
 s

ta
g
e

 2
 

 b
)  

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

t 
g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

u
p

ils
 e

lig
ib

le
 

fo
r 

fr
e
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
m

e
a

ls
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 p

e
e

rs
, 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 a
tt

a
in

m
e
n

t 
a

c
ro

s
s
 8

 G
C

S
E

 s
u
b

je
c
ts

 a
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e

 4
 

 
  a

) 

2
1

.8
%

 

    b
) 

7
.5

 

 
P

ro
v
is

io
n

a
l 
re

s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

A
c
a

d
e
m

ic
 Y

e
a

r 
2
0

1
5

/1
6

 
 6

2
.0

%
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 n

o
t 
e
lig

ib
le

 f
o

r 
F

S
M

 a
tt

a
in

e
d
 t

h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 i
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g
, 
W

ri
ti
n
g
 &

 M
a
th

s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 4
0

.2
%

 
o
f 

p
u

p
ils

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
o

r 
F

S
M

 a
tt

a
in

in
g
 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
. 

      P
u

p
ils

 n
o

t 
e

lig
ib

le
 f

o
r 

F
S

M
 h

a
v
e

 t
h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 a
tt

a
in

m
e
n

t 
s
c
o

re
 o

f 
5

4
.9

, 
c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 a

 s
c
o

re
 o

f 
4

7
.4

 f
o

r 
p
u

p
il s

 
e

lig
ib

le
 f

o
r 

F
S

M
 

S
p

e
c

ia
l 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 N

e
e

d
s

 

 a
)  

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

t 
g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

u
p

ils
 w

it
h

 

s
p

e
c
ia

l 
e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
n

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 p

e
e

rs
, 

b
a

s
e
d

 o
n
 %

 o
f 

p
u

p
ils

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

 
   a

) 

5
1

.4
%

 

 
 P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

A
L

 R
e

s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

A
c
a
d

e
m

ic
 y

e
a

r 
2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

 1
6

.5
%

 o
f 

p
u
p

ils
 w

it
h

 S
E

N
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 (
K

),
 1

1
.6

%
 o

f 
p
u

p
ils

 w
it
h

 
a

n
 E

d
u

c
a
ti
o
n

 H
e

a
lt
h
 C

a
re

 P
la

n
 (

E
H

C
P

) 
a

n
d

 0
%

 o
f 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

te
d

 (
S

) 
p

u
p

ils
 a

tt
a

in
e

d
 t

h
e

 n
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 i
n

 

31



  
1

5
 

M
e

a
s

u
re

  
T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

A
c

tu
a

l 
2

0
1
5

/1
6
 

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 (
in

c
lu

d
e

 c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
(s

) 
w

h
e
re

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

) 
 

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 i
n

 r
e
a

d
in

g
, 

w
ri
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 m
a

th
e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
k
e

y
 s

ta
g
e

 2
 

 b
)  

T
h
e

 S
p

e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 

(S
E

N
)/

n
o

n
-S

E
N

 g
a
p

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 

a
tt

a
in

m
e
n

t 
a

c
ro

s
s
 8

 G
C

S
E

 s
u

b
je

c
ts

 a
t 

th
e

 e
n
d

 

o
f 

K
e

y
 S

ta
g
e

 4
 

   b
) 

2
1

.0
 

R
e
a

d
in

g
, 
W

ri
ti
n
g
 &

 M
a
th

s
 a

t 
K

S
2

. 
 T

h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 a
tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

P
u
p

ils
 w

it
h

 S
E

N
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 (

K
) 

3
9

.9
, 

w
it
h

 a
n

 E
H

C
P

 3
0
.4

 a
n

d
 a

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

1
6

.6
. 

 R
e
s
u

lt
s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
y
e

t 
b
e

e
n

 p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 D
fE

 f
o

r 
E

n
g
la

n
d

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 n
a

rr
o

w
e

d
 t

h
e
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n
t 

g
a

p
 f

o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 L

o
o

k
e
d

 A
ft

e
r 

(C
L
A

) 

 c
)  

P
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 

(C
L

A
) 

fo
r 

1
 y

e
a

r 
p
lu

s
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

 g
o

o
d

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

t 
E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 F

o
u

n
d
a

ti
o
n

 S
ta

g
e

 

(a
n

n
u
a

l)
 

 d
) 

P
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
fo

r 
1
 

y
e

a
r 

p
lu

s
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
L

e
v
e

l 
4

 a
t 

K
S

2
 i
n

 

R
e
a

d
in

g
, 

w
ri
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 M
a
th

s
 (

a
n

n
u
a

l)
 

 e
) 

P
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
fo

r 
1
 

y
e

a
r 

p
lu

s
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

+
 A

* -
C

 G
C

S
E

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

E
n

g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

t 
K

S
4

 (
a
n
n

u
a

l)
 

     

 

N
/A

 
     

N
/A

 

     

1
4

%
 

           

   

  

N
/A

 

    

N
/A

 

    

N
/A

 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
D

a
ta

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

 
    L

o
c
a

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r,
 n

o
 C

L
A

 (
1
 y

e
a

r+
) 

in
 t

h
is

 c
o

h
o

rt
 

    O
n

ly
 o

n
e

 c
h

ild
 i
n

 t
h

is
 c

o
h

o
rt

 w
h

o
 h

a
s
 a

n
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 
H

e
a

lt
h
 

a
n

d
 C

a
re

 p
la

n
 (

E
H

C
P

) 
a

n
d
 w

a
s
 e

x
e

m
p

t 
fr

o
m

 s
it
ti
n

g
 e

x
a

m
s
 

N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
–

 5
2

%
 

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
N

e
ig

h
b
o

u
rs

 –
 5

6
%

 
   Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
–

 w
e

 h
a
d
 n

o
 C

L
A

 w
h

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 
G

C
S

E
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d

 M
a
th

s
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

t 
K

S
4

 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r.

 
N

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
–

  
1
3

.8
%

 
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
N

e
ig

h
b
o

u
rs

 –
2

6
.1

%
 

32



  
1

6
 

M
e

a
s

u
re

  
T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

A
c

tu
a

l 
2

0
1
5

/1
6
 

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 (
in

c
lu

d
e

 c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
(s

) 
w

h
e
re

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

) 
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 t

h
e

 p
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

1
6

 –
 1

8
 

y
e

a
rs

 o
ld

s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 i
n

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

t 
9

7
%

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
 

9
7

%
 

9
8

.3
%

 

 
L

G
 

J
u

n
e

 t
o

 A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

1
6

  
E

n
g
la

n
d

 –
 4

.8
%

 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 –
 3

.6
%

 
H

a
rr

o
w

 –
 1

.4
%

 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e
d

u
c
e

d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

N
E

E
T

 (
N

o
t 

in
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
) 

 t
o

 n
o

 m
o

re
 

th
a

n
 2

0
%

 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 o
ff

e
n

d
e
d

 

a
n

d
 f
o

r 
c
h
ild

re
n

 l
e

a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 (
L

C
) 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
6
 

Y
O

T
 

2
0

%
  
 

 

L
C

 2
0

%
 

3
5

.3
%

 

  

3
0

.3
%

 

H
R

 

  

H
R

 

T
h
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 
p

ro
p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 N

E
E

T
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 

h
a

v
e

 o
ff

e
n

d
e

d
 a

re
 i
n

 t
h
e

 1
7

-1
8

 (
n
o
n

 -
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
a

g
e

) 
g
ro

u
p

.  
 T

h
e

 c
a

re
 l
e

a
v
e

rs
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
o
n

ly
 t

a
k
e

 i
n

 t
o

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
E

E
T

 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
  

3
 m

o
n

th
s
 b

e
fo

re
 a

n
d
 1

 m
o
n

th
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 y

o
u

n
g
 

p
e

rs
o
n

’s
 b

ir
th

d
a

y
, 

a
n

y
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h
e

 d
e
fi
n
e
d

 p
e

ri
o
d

 
is

 n
o

t 
c
a

p
tu

re
d

 i
n
 t

h
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r,
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 i
n
d

ic
a
to

r 
4

6
 o

u
t 
o
f 

1
5

2
 c

a
re

 l
e
a

v
e

rs
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
in

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
. 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 c

o
m

p
a

ra
ti
v
e

 d
a

ta
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
. 

 
 T

h
e

 N
E

E
T

 f
ig

u
re

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 m
is

s
in

g
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

, 
th

o
s
e

 
w

h
o

 a
re

 i
n

 p
ri
s
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
s
e

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 l
o

s
t 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h

 b
u

t 
a

re
 e

lig
ib

le
 f

o
r 

le
a

v
in

g
 c

a
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

A
t 

3
1

s
t 
M

a
rc

h
 7

4
.5

 %
 

o
f 

a
ll 

c
a

re
 l
e

a
v
e

rs
 a

g
e
d

 1
8
 –

 2
1

 w
e

re
 E

E
T

 a
n
d

 t
h

is
 i
s
 a

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

d
u
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

c
a

re
e

rs
 

a
d

v
is

o
r 

&
 c

lo
s
e

 m
o
n

it
o
ri
n

g
 b

y
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
ir
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
. 

 N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
–

 3
9

%
 

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
N

e
ig

h
b
o

u
rs

 –
 3

2
%

 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

: 
M

in
im

is
e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 

P
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 
fo

o
d

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

ts
 b

ro
a
d

ly
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
w

it
h

 f
o
o

d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

 l
a

w
 

7
6

%
 

7
6

.1
%

 
L

G
 

 

G
re

e
n

h
o

u
s
e

 g
a

s
s
e

s
 (

G
H

G
):

 T
h
e

 p
e

rc
e
n
ta

g
e
 

4
%

 
6

.4
%

 
H

G
 

O
u

r 
E

n
e

rg
y
 T

e
a

m
 h

a
v
e

 h
e

lp
e

d
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 G
re

e
n
h

o
u

s
e

 g
a

s
e

s
 

33



  
1

7
 

M
e

a
s

u
re

  
T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

A
c

tu
a

l 
2

0
1
5

/1
6
 

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 (
in

c
lu

d
e

 c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
(s

) 
w

h
e
re

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

) 
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

C
O

² 
fr

o
m

 l
o
c
a

l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 o
p
e

ra
ti
o
n

s
 

(i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
, 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 &

 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
) 

fr
o
m

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 b

y
 6

.4
%

 (
a
g
a

in
s
t 

a
 t
a

rg
e

t 
o
f 

a
 4

%
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

),
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
e

d
 a

 r
a
n

g
e
 o

f 
e
n

e
rg

y
 

s
a

v
in

g
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
, 
h

e
lp

in
g
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
u

r 
e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
a

s
 

w
e

ll 
a

s
 s

a
v
e

 m
o

n
e

y
.  

T
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
c
ti
v
e

 p
a

rk
 u

s
e

r 
g
ro

u
p

s
 

1
4
 

1
8
 

H
G

 
 

C
re

a
te

 1
5

 n
e

w
 g

re
e

n
 g

y
m

s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
 

1
5
 

2
3
 

H
G

 
P

ro
v
id

e
d

 2
3

 n
e

w
 g

re
e
n

 g
y
m

s
 i
n
 p

a
rk

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 
to

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o

n
’s

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 
g
re

e
n

 g
y
m

 i
n

 e
v
e

ry
 p

a
rk

. 

N
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
a

s
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
o
n

 i
s
 t
a

k
e

n
 

to
 p

re
v
e

n
t 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 

 

1
2

0
0
 

1
0

3
0
 

H
R

 

In
 s

p
it
e

 o
f 

lim
it
e
d

 P
ri
v
a

te
 R

e
n
te

d
 S

e
c
to

r 
o
p
ti
o
n

s
, 

w
e

’r
e

 s
ti
ll 

b
e

in
g
 q

u
it
e

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
a

t 
p

re
v
e

n
ti
n

g
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
, 
b

u
t 

th
is

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 

k
e
p

t 
p
a

c
e

 w
it
h

 h
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s
. 

 

C
&

C
: 

H
a
rr

o
w

 l
e

is
u
re

 c
e

n
tr

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 

2
4

,0
0

0
 

2
5

,4
9

9
 

H
G

 
5

.5
0

%
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
 i
n

 Q
4
 2

0
1

5
-1

6
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d
 t

o
 

Q
4

 i
n

 2
0

1
4

-1
5
 

C
&

C
: 

n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
v
is

it
s
 t

o
 H

a
rr

o
w

 

L
e

is
u
re

 C
e
n

tr
e
  

 

1
,2

0
0

,0

0
0
 

1
,2

8
8

,9

6
9
 

H
G

 
4

.8
3

%
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 v
is

it
s
 i
n
 Q

4
 2

0
1

5
-1

6
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 Q
4
 

2
0

1
4

-1
5
 

C
&

C
: 

A
d

u
lt
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 i
n

 s
p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
e

 

re
c
re

a
ti
o

n
  

1
9

.7
%

 
2

0
.4

0
%

 

H
G

 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

1
.5

%
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 A

d
u

lt
s
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 

S
u

rv
e

y
 (

A
P

S
) 

1
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e

n
 b

y
 S

p
o

rt
s
 E

n
g
la

n
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
5
/6

. 

T
h

is
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 3

0
 

m
in

u
te

s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 3

 t
im

e
s
 a

 w
e

e
k
. 

C
&

C
: 

N
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
ts

 a
tt
e

n
d

in
g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
.  

 
1

8
4
 

3
5

5
 

H
G

 
T

h
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a

s
 b

e
e
n
 c

h
a

n
g
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o
n

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n
 Y

o
u

th
 G

a
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 i
t 
h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
H

a
rr

o
w

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a
ti
n

g
 i
n

 2
0

1
5

/1
6
. 

Q
4

 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 t
h

e
 b

o
y
s
 a

n
d

 g
ir
ls

 c
ri

c
k
e
t 

a
n

d
 b

o
c
c
ia

. 
 

N
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 s

e
tt

in
g
 a

 q
u

it
 d

a
te

 w
it
h

 S
C

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

h
o

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 q

u
it
 a

t 
4

 w
e

e
k
s
 

(2
0

1
4

/1
5

 t
a

rg
e

t 
7
2

0
) 

4
5

4
 

4
5

8
 

L
G

 

O
v
e

r 
th

e
 f

u
ll 

y
e

a
r 

th
e

 q
u

it
s
 t

a
rg

e
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 e
x
c
e

e
d
e

d
. 

34



  
1

8
 

M
e

a
s

u
re

  
T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

A
c

tu
a

l 
2

0
1
5

/1
6
 

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 (
in

c
lu

d
e

 c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
(s

) 
w

h
e
re

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

) 
 

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 n
u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
m

o
th

e
rs

 t
h
a

t 
s
m

o
k
e

 a
t 

ti
m

e
 o

f 
d
e

liv
e

ry
 

5
%

 
4

.3
%

 
H

G
 

 

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

g
e

d
 4

-5
 c

la
s
s
if
ie

d
 a

s
 

o
v
e

rw
e

ig
h

t  

1
1

.0
%

 
1

0
.0

%
 

H
G

 

D
a
ta

 i
s
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 a

n
n

u
a
lly

, 
in

 Q
3

 f
o

r 
e
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r 

fo
r 

th
e

 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
y
e

a
r.

 T
a

rg
e

ts
 a

re
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 2

0
1
3

/1
4
 

b
a

s
e

lin
e
. 

D
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e

 N
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
C

h
i ld

 M
e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
a
t 

o
v
e

rw
e

ig
h

t 
p

re
v
a

le
n

c
e

 
in

 4
-5

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 h

a
s
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e

d
 1

%
 f

ro
m

 1
1

%
 t
o

 1
0

%
 a

n
d

 
re

m
a

in
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g
la

n
d

 p
re

v
a

le
n

c
e

’s
 o

f 
1

2
.8

%
 a

n
d

 1
2

%
 r

e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

g
e

d
 4

-5
 c

la
s
s
if
ie

d
 a

s
 

o
b

e
s
e
 

9
.3

%
 

9
.2

%
 

L
G

 

D
a
ta

 i
s
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 a

n
n

u
a
lly

, 
in

 Q
3

 f
o

r 
e
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r 

fo
r 

th
e

 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
y
e

a
r.

 T
a

rg
e

ts
 a

re
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 2

0
1
3

/1
4
 

b
a

s
e

lin
e
. 

D
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e

 N
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
C

h
ild

 M
e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
3

 s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 o
b

e
s
it
y
 p

re
v
a

le
n

c
e

 
in

 4
-5

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 h

a
s
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 0

.1
%

 f
ro

m
 9

.3
%

 t
o

 9
.2

%
 

a
n

d
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 a

n
d

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 p
re

v
a

le
n

c
e

’s
 

o
f 

1
0

.1
%

 a
n
d

 9
.1

%
 r

e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

g
e

d
 1

0
-1

1
 c

la
s
s
if
ie

d
 a

s
 

o
v
e

rw
e

ig
h

t 

1
5

.9
%

 
1

3
.1

%
 

H
G

 

D
a
ta

 i
s
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 a

n
n

u
a
lly

, 
in

 Q
3

 f
o

r 
e
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r 

fo
r 

th
e

 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
y
e

a
r.

 T
a

rg
e

ts
 a

re
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 2

0
1
3

/1
4
 

b
a

s
e

lin
e
. 

D
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e

 N
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
C

h
ild

 M
e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
a
t 

o
v
e

rw
e

ig
h

t 
p

re
v
a

le
n

c
e

 
in

 1
0

-1
1

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 h

a
s
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 2

.1
%

 f
ro

m
 1

5
.9

%
 t

o
 

1
3

.1
, 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e

s
 s

e
e

n
 i
n

 L
o

n
d
o
n

 w
it
h

 a
 

p
re

v
a

le
n

c
e

 o
f 

1
4

.6
%

 a
n

d
 E

n
g
la

n
d

 p
re

v
a

le
n

c
e
 o

f 
1
4

.2
%

. 

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

g
e

d
 1

0
-1

1
 c

la
s
s
if
ie

d
 a

s
 

o
b

e
s
e
 

2
0

.8
%

 
2

1
.2

%
 

A
 

D
a
ta

 i
s
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 a

n
n

u
a
lly

, 
in

 Q
3

 f
o

r 
e
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r 

fo
r 

th
e

 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
y
e

a
r.

 T
a

rg
e

ts
 a

re
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 2

0
1
3

/1
4
 

b
a

s
e

lin
e
. 

D
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e

 N
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
C

h
ild

 M
e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
a
t 

o
b

e
s
it
y
 p

re
v
a

le
n

c
e

 i
n

 
1

0
-1

1
 y

e
a

r 
o
ld

s
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
d

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 b
y
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e
 

in
c
re

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

0
.4

%
 f

ro
m

 2
0

.8
%

 t
o

 2
1

.2
%

 b
u

t 
re

m
a

in
s
 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n
 t

h
e

 L
o

n
d
o

n
 p

re
v
a

le
n

c
e

 o
f 

2
2

.6
%

 b
u

t 
h

ig
h
e

r 
th

a
n

 
E

n
g
la

n
d

 a
t 

1
9

.1
%

. 

35



  
1

9
 

M
e

a
s

u
re

  
T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

A
c

tu
a

l 
2

0
1
5

/1
6
 

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 (
in

c
lu

d
e

 c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
(s

) 
w

h
e
re

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

) 
 

S
lo

p
e

 i
n

d
e

x
 o

f 
in

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
n

 l
if
e

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 a

t 

b
ir
th

 (
M

a
le

) 
 

6
 

6
 

L
G

 

D
a
ta

 u
p

d
a
te

d
 a

n
n

u
a

lly
, 

F
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1

1
-1

3
, 

re
c
e

n
t 
d

a
ta

 
fo

r 
E

n
g
la

n
d
 s

h
o

w
s
 a

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 l
if
e

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
fi
rs

t 
ti
m

e
. 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t 
o
f 

8
5

.9
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
t 
to

 m
a
in

ta
in

 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

lif
e

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
. 

S
lo

p
e

 i
n

d
e

x
 o

f 
in

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
n

 l
if
e

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 a

t 

b
ir
th

 (
F

e
m

a
le

) 
5

 
5

 
L

G
 

D
a
ta

 u
p

d
a
te

d
 a

n
n

u
a

lly
, 
fi
g
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
1

-1
3

. 
R

e
c
e

n
t 
d

a
ta

 
fo

r 
E

n
g
la

n
d
 s

h
o

w
s
 a

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 l
if
e

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
fi
rs

t 
ti
m

e
. 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t 
o
f 

8
5

.9
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
t 
to

 m
a
in

ta
in

 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

lif
e

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
. 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

: 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 g

ro
u
p

s
  

N
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
e
d

 i
n

to
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t,
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

(j
o
b

 b
ro

k
e

ra
g
e

 &
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

) 
1

0
0
 

2
3

5
 

H
G

 

It
 i
s
 n

o
t 

e
a

s
y
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
a
re

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
ri
n
g
  

b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 

b
e

c
a
u

s
e
 

T
h
e

y
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
je

c
ts

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

s
 o

f 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0

1
6

 J
S

A
 H

a
rr

o
w

 1
.2

%
, 

L
o
n

d
o
n

 1
.8

%
, 

U
K

 
1

.8
%

 

N
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

(b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
rv

iv
a

l 
a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 g

ro
w

th
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

) 

7
5

3
 

8
5

1
 

H
G

 

It
 i
s
 n

o
t 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 m
e
a

s
u

re
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

b
o
ro

u
g
h

s
 –

 s
e
e

 
a

b
o

v
e
 

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 v
a

c
a

n
c
y
 r

a
te

s
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 T
o

w
n

 

C
e
n

tr
e
 

L
e

s
s
 

th
a

n
 

9
.2

5
%

 

5
.2

6
%

 
H

G
 

G
re

a
t 

B
ri
ta

in
 

A
ll 

s
h

o
p

s
 -

 1
2

.5
%

 
S

h
o

p
p

in
g
 C

e
n

tr
e
s
 -

 1
3
.2

%
 

R
e
ta

il 
P

a
rk

s
 -

 6
.0

%
 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
s
 -

 1
0
.9

%
 

S
o

u
rc

e
: 
L

o
c
a

l 
D

a
ta

 c
o
m

p
a
n

y
 P

re
s
s
 R

e
le

a
s
e

 (
1
4

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
6

) 
h

tt
p

:/
/b

lo
g
.l
o

c
a

ld
a

ta
c
o
m

p
a
n

y
.c

o
m

/p
re

s
s
-r

e
le

a
s
e

8
5

-
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

-i
n
c
re

a
s
e

-i
n
-t

h
e

-n
u
m

b
e

r-
o
f-

s
h

o
rt

-t
e

rm
-v

a
c
a

n
t-

u
n

it
s
-a

c
ro

s
s
-g

b
-t

o
w

n
s
-q

1
-2

0
1

6
  

N
o
t 

a
b

le
 t

o
 f

in
d
 a

n
y
 d

a
ta

 f
o

r 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 o
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n
 s

u
s
ta

in
e

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

–
1

5
3
 

1
6

9
 

H
G

 
It

 i
s
 n

o
t 

e
a

s
y
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
a
re

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
ri
n
g
  

b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 

b
e

c
a
u

s
e
 

36



  
2

0
 

M
e

a
s

u
re

  
T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

A
c

tu
a

l 
2

0
1
5

/1
6
 

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 (
in

c
lu

d
e

 c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
(s

) 
w

h
e
re

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

) 
 

jo
b

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d

 f
o

r 
6
 m

o
n

th
s
 o

r 
m

o
re

. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
t 
a

 l
ik

e
 f

o
r 

lik
e

 m
e
a

s
u

re
s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 i
f 

o
n
e

 l
o
o

k
s
 

a
t 

lo
n

g
 t
e

rm
 u

n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,

 t
h

e
 r

a
te

 f
o

r 
H

a
rr

o
w

 i
s
 4

.2
%

, 
re

g
io

n
a

l 
7

.8
%

, 
a
n

d
  
E

n
g
la

n
d

 7
.1

%
. 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
 i
s
 o

n
ly

 s
lig

h
tl
y
 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d

 t
h

e
 

ra
te

 o
f 

lo
n

g
 t

e
rm

 c
la

im
a

n
ts

 o
f 

jo
b

 s
e
e

k
e

rs
 a

llo
w

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 l
o

w
e

r.
 

T
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 

re
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 r

e
p

a
ir
s
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 

7
 

9
 

H
G

 

 W
e
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

 a
 3

 w
a

y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
it
h

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
n

 a
m

b
it
io

u
s
 s

o
c
ia

l 
v
a

lu
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
h

a
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t
o

 
o
ff

e
ri
n

g
 a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
, 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 h

a
v
e

 a
 g

o
o

d
 t

ra
c
k
 r

e
c
o

rd
 

o
f 

o
ff

e
ri
n

g
 p

e
rm

a
n
e

n
t 
jo

b
s
 t
o

 t
ra

in
e

e
s
 o

n
c
e
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 t

h
e

ir
 a

p
p

re
n
ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
. 

 

A
d

u
lt
s
 -

 %
 o

f 
a

d
u

lt
s
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n

 

p
a

id
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
1

8
%

 
1

8
.9

%
 

L
G

 

T
h
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
h
o

w
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

t 
Q

4
, 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t.
 

T
h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
(o

f 
a

n
y
 t

y
p

e
) 

is
 v

e
ry

 h
ig

h
 

c
o

m
p
a

re
d
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
L
o
n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
, 
w

it
h

 o
n

ly
 H

o
u

n
s
lo

w
 

re
p

o
rt

in
g
 a

 b
e

tt
e

r 
re

s
u

lt
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

 (
2
0
.1

%
) 

A
d

u
lt
s
 -

 %
 o

f 
M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 c
lie

n
ts

 i
n
 p

a
id

 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
 

6
.5

%
 

6
.8

%
 

L
G

 

T
h
e

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h
e

a
lt
h
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

th
a

n
 f
o

r 
c
lie

n
ts

 w
it
h

 
le

a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 b

y
 m

e
a

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 m
o
n

th
ly

 d
a

ta
. 
T

h
e

re
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
o

m
e

 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
w

o
rk

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 c

re
a

te
d

 i
n

 r
e
c
e
n

t 
m

o
n

th
s
 t
h

u
s
 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t.
  

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

: 
E

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 p
ri
d

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
o

u
r 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 e

v
e

n
ts

: 
N

o
. 

o
f 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 &
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

e
c
to

r 
e
v
e

n
ts

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 C

u
lt
u

ra
l 
c
a

le
n

d
a

r 
1

0
 

1
0
 

L
G

 

A
 t

o
ta

l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

te
n

 e
v
e

n
ts

 w
e

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 t

h
ir
d

 s
e

c
to

r.
 T

h
e

s
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 E
id

, 
V

a
is

a
k
h

i,
 D

iw
a

li,
 ,

 

H
a
rr

o
w

 I
n

te
r -

F
a
it
h

 W
e
e

k
, 

C
h
a
n

u
k
a
h

, 
S

a
in

t 
G

e
o

rg
e

’s
 D

a
y
, 

T
h
a

i 
P

o
n

g
a

l,
 C

h
ri
s
tm

a
s
, 

H
o
lo

c
a
u

s
t 

M
e
m

o
ri
a

l 
D

a
y
 a

n
d

 N
e

w
 

Y
e

a
r’
s
 D

a
y
 P

a
ra

d
e

. 

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

o
h
e

s
io

n
 -

 %
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 a
g
re

e
 

- 
- 

 
T

h
e

 l
a

s
t 

R
e

p
u
ta

ti
o
n

 T
ra

c
k
e

r 
s
u
rv

e
y
 w

it
h

 t
h

is
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
 i
n

 

37



  
2

1
 

M
e

a
s

u
re

  
T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

A
c

tu
a

l 
2

0
1
5

/1
6
 

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 (
in

c
lu

d
e

 c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
(s

) 
w

h
e
re

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

) 
 

th
a

t 
p

e
o

p
le

 g
e

t 
o

n
 w

e
ll 

to
g
e

th
e

r 
in

 t
h
e

ir
 l
o

c
a

l 

a
re

a
 (

re
p

 t
ra

c
k
e

r)
  

 

  

N
/A

 

w
a

s
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

6
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 7

9
%

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

S
c
o

re
c
a

rd
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
 a

 t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

7
0
%

 f
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

2
0

1
6
/1

7
; 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 M
a
y
 f

ig
u

re
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
is

, 
b

u
t 

ra
th

e
r 

th
e

 n
e

x
t 

s
u

rv
e

y
 d

u
e

 i
n

 M
a
rc

h
. 
T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
a

re
n

tl
y
 a

 2
0

1
5
/1

6
 t
a

rg
e

t.
  

 

O
b
je
ct
iv
e
: 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t

h
a

t 
fe

e
ls

 v
a

lu
e

d
, 

re
sp

e
ct

e
d

 a
n

d
 i
s 

re
fl

e
ct

iv
e

 o
f 

th
e

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 w

e
 s

e
rv

e
 

P
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

to
p
 5

%
 e

a
rn

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 w

o
m

e
n

 

(B
V

 1
1
a

) 
5

0
%

 
5

3
.6

8
%

 
H

G
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
a

rg
e

t.
 T

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
is

 5
0

%
 a

s
 

th
is

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
w

o
m

e
n

 i
n

 t
h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

P
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

to
p
 5

%
 e

a
rn

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 B

M
E

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 (

B
V

 1
1
b

) 
2

0
%

 
1

8
.9

5
%

 
L

R
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

g
a

in
 i
n
 Q

4
 a

n
d

 a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 b
e

lo
w

 

ta
rg

e
t 

is
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 Q

4
 i
n

 2
0

1
4
/1

5
. 

T
h
e

 p
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

th
e
 t
o

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e

a
rn

e
rs

 i
n

 t
h
e

 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 w
it
h

 a
 d

is
a
b

ili
ty

 (
e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o

s
e

 i
n

 

m
a

in
ta

in
e
d

 s
c
h
o

o
ls

) 
(B

V
 1

1
c
) 

3
.0

0
%

 
1

.0
5

%
 

H
R

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 i
n

 Q
4
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
v
e

rs
e

s
 t

h
e

 

re
c
e

n
t 

tr
e

n
d
; 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
it
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n

d
 o

f 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 s

m
a

ll 
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 m

e
a
n

 t
h

e
 

in
d

ic
a
to

r 
is

 h
ig

h
ly

 v
o

la
ti
le

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
a

y
 b

e
 

im
p

a
c
te

d
 b

y
 f

u
tu

re
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
  

P
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

d
is

a
b

le
d
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 (

B
V

 1
6

a
) 

3
.0

0
%

 
1

.2
8

%
 

H
R

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 i
n

 Q
4
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
v
e

rs
e

s
 t

h
e

 

re
c
e

n
t 

tr
e

n
d
; 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
it
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n

d
 o

f 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 s

m
a

ll 
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 m

e
a
n

 t
h

e
 

in
d

ic
a
to

r 
is

 h
ig

h
ly

 v
o

la
ti
le

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
a

y
 b

e
 

im
p

a
c
te

d
 b

y
 f

u
tu

re
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
. 

P
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

b
la

c
k
 a

n
d

 e
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 (

B
V

 1
7

a
)  

4
5

%
 

4
4

.0
5

%
 

A
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

g
a

in
 i
n
 Q

3
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 

h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

 T
h
e

 C
E

G
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
a
n

d
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

w
a

y
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
e
d

 o
n
 a

 n
e

w
 

38



  
2

2
 

M
e

a
s

u
re

  
T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 

A
c

tu
a

l 
2

0
1
5

/1
6
 

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 (
in

c
lu

d
e

 c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
(s

) 
w

h
e
re

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

) 
 

ta
rg

e
t.

 

%
 o

f 
n
e

w
 s

ta
rt

e
rs

 w
h

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
h
e

 m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 

E
q
u

a
lit

y
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 t
ra

in
in

g
 (

e
it
h

e
r 

fa
c
e
 t

o
 f
a

c
e
 o

r 

E
-L

e
a

rn
in

g
 M

o
d
u

le
) 

w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 
8

 w
e

e
k
s
 o

f 

th
e

ir
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 

1
0

0
%

 
 

3
2

%
 

H
R

 

A
t 

Q
4
 t

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

4
%

 c
o
m

p
a

re
d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 q

u
a

rt
e
r.

 T
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 4

7
 n

e
w

 s
ta

rt
e
rs

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h
 1

4
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 t

h
e

ir
 t

ra
in

in
g
 (

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

lly
 8

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
t 

o
u

ts
id

e
 

th
e

 8
 w

e
e

k
 p

e
ri
o
d

).
 I

n
 2

0
1
6

/1
7
 w

e
 a

re
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 i
n

to
 s

e
tt

in
g
 

re
m

in
d
e

rs
 t

o
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e

ir
 m

a
n

d
a

to
ry

 t
ra

in
in

g
. 

%
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n
g
 s

ta
ff

 (
a

s
 a

t 
A

p
ri
l 
'1

4
) 

w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 t

h
e

 m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 

re
fr

e
s
h

e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 (

e
it
h
e

r 
fa

c
e

 t
o

 f
a

c
e

 o
r 

E
-

L
e

a
rn

in
g
 M

o
d
u

le
) 

b
y
 y

e
a

r 
e
n
d

. 

1
0

0
%

 
3

6
%

 
H

R
 

T
h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 m
a

rk
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 C

L
G

 

b
e

in
g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 r
e
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

-a
c
ti
v
e

 m
o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
, 

b
u

t 
th

e
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t.

  
 

C
o
n

s
id

e
r 

S
ig

n
in

g
 u

p
 t

o
 S

to
n
e

w
a

lls
 D

iv
e

rs
it
y
 

C
h
a

m
p

io
n

s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

lo
re

 o
th

e
r 

s
u
c
h

 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

H
G

 

S
ig

n
e

d
 u

p
 t

o
 S

to
n

e
w

a
lls

 D
iv

e
rs

it
y
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

a
n

d
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 W

o
rk

p
la

c
e

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 I

n
d

e
x
 

in
 A

u
g
u

s
t 
2

0
1
5
 

               

39



  
2

3
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 &

 D
iv

e
rs

it
y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 T

a
rg

e
ts

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 
 

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 E

Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

S
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

 2
0
1
6
/1

7
 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 

A
n
 i
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
h
a
t 
fe

e
ls

 v
a
lu

e
d
, 

re
s
p
e
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 o
u
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
  

P
ri
o

ri
ty

 (
n
e

e
d

s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

) 

R
e
a

s
o

n
s
 

A
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

A
c
ti
o

n
s
  

W
h
a
t 
s
p
e

c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o
n

s
 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 n
e
e

d
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
e
a

c
h

 

p
ri
o

ri
ty

?
 

 

A
c
c
o

u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 o

f 

th
is

 a
c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 

w
ill

 s
it
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 G

ro
u
p
 

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 L
e

a
d
 

(S
L

) 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

a
l 
L

e
a
d

 

(O
L
) 

 

 

H
o
w

 w
ill

 t
h

is
 b

e
 m

e
a

s
u
re

d
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 o
n

 o
u

r 
p
o

s
it
io

n
 i
n

 S
to

n
e

w
a

lls
 

W
o
rk

p
la

c
e

 I
n
d

e
x
, 

ta
rg

e
ti
n

g
 a

 p
la

c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

to
p

 2
0

0
 

R
e
a

s
o

n
 –

 8
0
.3

4
%

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 d

id
 n

o
t 
a

n
s
w

e
r 

th
e

 q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
 a

ro
u
n

d
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
o

ri
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 

w
h

e
n

 t
h

is
 w

a
s
 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

ta
ff

 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 i
n

 2
0

1
2

. 
T

h
e

 l
a

te
s
t 

(2
0

1
4

/1
5

) 
re

p
o

rt
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 t

h
is

 s
ti
ll 

s
ta

n
d

s
 

a
t 

7
7

.2
3

%
. 

S
ta

ff
 S

u
rv

e
y
 -

 2
0

%
 o

f 
g
a

y
 m

e
n

 a
n
d

 3
8

%
 

o
f 

le
s
b

ia
n

s
 s

tr
o
n

g
ly

 d
is

a
g
re

e
d

/d
is

a
g
re

e
d

 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
th

a
t 

H
a
rr

o
w

 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

 a
 p

la
c
e

 i
n
 t

h
e

 t
o

p
 

2
0

0
 o

f 
th

e
 W

o
rk

p
la

c
e

 

E
q
u

a
lit

y
 I

n
d

e
x
 

A
 m

o
re

 i
n

c
lu

s
iv

e
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e

 

fo
r 

L
G

B
T

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
 

S
ta

ff
 f

e
e

l 
v
a

lu
e

d
, 

re
s
p

e
c
te

d
 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

fo
rt

a
b

le
 t
o

 b
e

 

th
e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 a

t 
w

o
rk

 

S
e

e
 S

to
n

e
w

a
ll 

W
o
rk

p
la

c
e

 

E
q
u

a
lit

y
 I

n
d

e
x
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

  

 

P
o

lic
y
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

- 

E
q
u

a
lit

y
 &

 

D
iv

e
rs

it
y
 &

 S
ta

ff
 

M
A

D
G

 (
S

L
)  

 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 

E
q
u

a
lit

y
 T

a
s
k
 

G
ro

u
p

s
 (

D
E

T
G

s
) 

(O
L
) 

–
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

R
e
g
u

la
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 

to
 C

E
G

 

In
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
g
a

in
s
t 

th
is

 i
n
 t

h
e

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

to
 t

h
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

K
P

I 
- 

A
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

 t
o

p
 2

0
0

 

p
la

c
e

 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e

 

in
d

e
x
 i
n

 2
0
1

6
 

40



  
2

4
 

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 i
ts

 a
c
ti
o
n

s
 t

h
a

t 
it
 i
s
 

c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
in

g
 a

n
 e

q
u
a

l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

r.
 

3
8

%
 o

f 
le

s
b

ia
n

 s
ta

ff
 a

ls
o

 s
tr

o
n

g
ly

 

d
is

a
g
re

e
d

/d
is

a
g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

I 

a
m

 t
re

a
te

d
 w

it
h
 f

a
ir
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

a
t 

H
a
rr

o
w

 

4
5

 %
 l
e

s
b

ia
n
 a

n
d

 4
0

%
 g

a
y
 m

e
n

 s
tr

o
n
g

ly
 

d
is

a
g

re
e
d

/d
is

a
g

re
e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 

S
y
s
te

m
s
 f

o
r 

re
w

a
rd

 a
n
d

 r
e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 i
n

 

H
a
rr

o
w

 a
re

 f
a

ir
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
p

a
re

n
t 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d
 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e

ir
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

 a
 m

o
re

 c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 b
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
e
p

o
rt

in
g
 

a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

rd
in

g
 o

f 
p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
, 
p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 d

is
a
b

ili
ty

.  

R
e
a

s
o

n
 –

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
%

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
n

y
 s

o
c
ia

l 
id

e
n

ti
ty

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
, 

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 o

n
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 s
e

x
u

a
l 

o
ri
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
. 

A
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 w
it
h

 a
n

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 %
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
id

e
n
ti
fy

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

(e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

s
e

x
u

a
l 

o
ri
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
, 
a

n
d

 r
e
lig

io
n

 a
n
d

 

b
e

lie
f)

  

 

E
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 s
ta

ff
 t

o
 u

p
d
a

te
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
id

e
n
ti
ty

 d
a

ta
 p

ro
fi
le

s
 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 S
A

P
 

E
S

S
 d

a
ta

 r
e
c
o

rd
in

g
. 

H
R

D
 /

 C
o
m

m
s
 t

o
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

 t
h

e
 

c
a

m
p
a

ig
n

 (
S

L
) 

 

D
E

T
G

s
 t
o

 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 

c
a

m
p
a

ig
n

 a
n
d

 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 s
ta

ff
 

to
 u

p
d

a
te

 s
o

c
ia

l 

id
e

n
ti
ty

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 (

O
L

) 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 t
o

 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 
B

o
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 

th
e

 C
E

G
 

K
P

I 
- 

%
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
id

e
n
ti
fy

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
  

 

41



  
2

5
 

U
ti
lis

e
 v

a
lu

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
u

lt
u
re

 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o

 

m
a

k
e
 c

le
a

r 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

a
ro

u
n
d

 h
o

w
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 i
s
 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

e
s
, 

e
.g

. 
D

o
 i
t 

to
g
e

th
e

r 
is

 a
b

o
u

t 

re
s
p

e
c
t,

 v
a

lu
in

g
 e

a
c
h

 o
th

e
r 

e
tc

. 

 

H
R

D
 /

 C
o
m

m
s
 t

o
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

 t
h

e
 

c
a

m
p
a

ig
n

 (
S

L
) 

 

D
E

T
G

s
 (

O
L

) 
to

 

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h

is
 

m
e

s
s
a

g
e

 w
it
h

in
 

th
e

ir
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
B

A
M

E
 a

n
d

 
d

is
a
b

le
d
 s

ta
ff

 a
t 

s
e

n
io

r 
p
a

y
 b

a
n
d

s
 

 R
e
a

s
o

n
 -

 A
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
B

A
M

E
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 i
s
 

g
re

a
te

s
t 

in
 t
h

e
 l
o

w
e

r 
p
a

y
 b

a
n

d
s
 a

n
d
 

re
d

u
c
e

s
 a

t 
h

ig
h

e
r 

p
a

y
 b

a
n
d

s
. 

 W
h
e
n

 t
h

e
 

s
n

a
p

s
h

o
t 
o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e
 w

a
s
 t

a
k
e

n
 o

n
 

3
1

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

, 
th

e
re

 w
e

re
 n

o
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 w

h
o

 h
a

d
 d

e
c
la

re
d

 t
h

e
ir
 

e
th

n
ic

it
y
 a

s
 B

A
M

E
 a

t 
p
a

y
 b

a
n

d
 6

 

(D
ir
e

c
to

r 
le

v
e

l 
a

n
d

 a
b
o
v
e

).
 

T
h
e

 r
e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 w

h
o

 
h

a
v
e

 d
e

c
la

re
d

 a
 d

is
a
b

ili
ty

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 l
o
w

 a
t 

a
ll 

le
v
e

ls
 o

f 
th

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
. 
 

 

A
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

B
A

M
E

 a
n

d
 d

is
a
b

le
d

 s
ta

ff
 a

t 
s
e

n
io

r 
p
a

y
 b

a
n

d
s
 

E
m

b
e

d
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

t 
s
e

n
io

r 
le

v
e

l 
w

it
h

 c
la

ri
ty

 
a

b
o
u

t 
w

h
o

 i
s
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
 

fo
r 

d
ri
v
in

g
 t

h
is

 a
g
e

n
d

a
. 

 B
u

ild
 a

 c
ri
ti
c
a

l 
m

a
s
s
 o

f 
s
e

n
io

r 
ro

le
 m

o
d

e
ls

 f
ro

m
 

u
n

d
e

r -
re

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 g

ro
u

p
s
 

 C
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 
le

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
to

 
im

p
ro

v
e

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
B

A
M

E
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

u
n
d

e
r-

re
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 s

ta
ff

 g
ro

u
p

s
. 

 
C

o
n

s
id

e
r 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
to

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 
th

e
 ‘
ta

le
n

t 
p

ip
e

lin
e

’ 
fr

o
m

 
u

n
d
e

r -
re

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 g

ro
u

p
s
. 

 M
o

n
it
o

r 
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 

 

H
R

 &
 O

D
 (

S
L

 &
 

O
L

)  

S
u

p
p
o

rt
e
d
 b

y
 

D
E

T
G

s
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 t
o

 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 
B

o
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 

th
e

 C
E

G
 

K
P

I 
- 

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
B

la
c
k
, 

A
s
ia

n
 &

 M
in

o
ri
ty

 E
th

n
ic

 
(B

A
M

E
) 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
  

 K
P

I 
- 

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
d

is
a
b

le
d
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 

K
P

I 
- 

%
 o

f 
to

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e

a
rn

e
rs

 w
h

o
 a

re
 B

A
M

E
 

 K
P

I 
- 

%
 t
o

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a

rn
e

rs
 

w
h

o
 a

re
 d

is
a
b

le
d

 

42



  
2

6
 

n
o

 i
n
d

ic
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
b

ia
s
. 

 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t,
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 
re

te
n

ti
o
n

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
  

 R
e
a

s
o

n
 -

 T
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 a

g
e

d
 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a
n

 2
5

 
y
e

a
rs

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 l
o
w

 a
t 
3
.8

3
%

, 
a

n
d

 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 l
e

a
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
g
e

d
 

u
n

d
e

r 
2
5

 y
e

a
rs

, 
is

 h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h
e

ir
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
. 

 
 

T
o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

a
tt

ra
c
ti
v
e

 t
o

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
, 

p
a

id
 i
n
te

rn
s
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

ro
u

te
s
 i
n
to

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

  

 

·
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
R

&
S

 P
o

lic
y
 

to
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

in
g
 

a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n

 o
f 

v
a

c
a

n
c
ie

s
 t

o
 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 

a
p

p
lic

a
n
ts

 a
n

d
 

e
lim

in
a

ti
n

g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 

b
a

rr
ie

rs
 t

o
 t
h

e
ir
 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t.
 

·
 

D
e
liv

e
r 

X
1

6
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
je

c
t 
to

 

im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 

e
m

p
lo

y
a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 (

N
E

E
T

).
 W

o
rk

 

w
it
h

 o
n

e
 s

to
p

 s
h
o

p
 a

n
d

 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 p
ro

m
o
te

 

a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 l
o

c
a

l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

),
 m

a
rk

e
t 

a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
 t

o
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e

c
to

rs
, 

D
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
D

ir
e
c
to

rs
, 

h
e

a
d

s
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 m

a
n
a

g
e

rs
. 

 

H
R

D
 

    E
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
&

 

H
R

D
 (

S
L

 &
 O

L
) 

 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 t
o

 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 
B

o
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 

th
e

 C
E

G
 

K
P

I 
- 

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 a

g
e

d
 

le
s
s
 t

h
a
n

 2
5
 

43



  
2

7
 

A
ll 

s
ta

ff
 t
o

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e

 m
a
n

d
a

to
ry

 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 t
ra

in
in

g
 e

v
e

ry
 t

w
o

 y
e

a
rs

 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 u

p
 t
o

 d
a
te

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 
la

te
s
t 

le
g
is

la
ti
o

n
, 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

b
e

s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
.  

A
ll 

s
ta

ff
 a

re
 u

p
 t
o

 d
a

te
 w

it
h

 

th
e

 m
a
n

d
a
to

ry
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 

M
a

tt
e

rs
 t

ra
in

in
g
 

·
 

A
ll 

s
ta

ff
 t
o

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e

 

m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 

M
a

tt
e

rs
 t

ra
in

in
g
 e

v
e

ry
 

tw
o

 y
e

a
rs

 

H
R

D
 t

o
 p

ro
d
u

c
e

 

m
o

n
th

ly
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 

fo
r 

D
E

T
G

s
 

D
E

T
G

s
 t
o

 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 s
ta

ff
 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h

e
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

K
P

I 
- 

%
 o

f 
n
e

w
 s

ta
rt

e
rs

 

w
h

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

h
e

 

m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 

M
a

tt
e

rs
 t

ra
in

in
g
 (

e
it
h
e

r 

fa
c
e

 t
o

 f
a

c
e

 o
r 

E
-L

e
a

rn
in

g
 

M
o

d
u

le
) 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 
8

 

w
e

e
k
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

 

K
P

I 
- 

%
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n
g
 s

ta
ff

 (
a

s
 

a
t 

A
p

ri
l 
'1

6
) 

w
h

o
 a

re
 u

p
 t

o
 

d
a

te
 w

it
h

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 

re
fr

e
s
h

e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 (

e
it
h
e

r 

fa
c
e

 t
o

 f
a

c
e

 o
r 

E
-L

e
a

rn
in

g
 

M
o

d
u

le
)  

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 

A
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
o
u
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 f
a
ir
, 
e
q
u
it
a
b
le

 a
n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 a

ll 
a
n
d
 r

e
d
u

c
e
 

in
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 

P
ri
o

ri
ty

 (
n
e

e
d

s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

) 

R
e
a

s
o

n
s
 

A
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
  

 

A
c
ti
o

n
s
  

W
h
a
t 
s
p
e

c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o
n

s
 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 n
e
e

d
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
e
a

c
h

 

p
ri
o

ri
ty

?
 

 
H

o
w

 w
ill

 t
h

is
 b

e
 m

e
a

s
u
re

d
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

 
c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o
 c

o
lla

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 
a

n
a

ly
s
in

g
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 d

a
ta

 t
o

 i
n
fo

rm
 p

o
lic

y
 

a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

 
 R

e
a

s
o

n
 –

 T
h
e

 e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 d

a
ta

 p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 

·
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 c

o
lla

ti
n

g
 

d
a

ta
 o

n
 a

ll 
n

in
e

 

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 C

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

·
 

C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
re

 

m
o

n
it
o

re
d
 a

n
d

 a
n

a
ly

s
e

d
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 u
p
d

a
te

 a
ll 

o
u

r 
d

a
ta

 c
o

lla
ti
o
n

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 t
o

 
c
o

lla
te

 d
a

ta
 o

n
 a

ll 
n

in
e

 
P

ro
te

c
te

d
 C

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

 

D
E

T
G

s
 (

S
L

 &
 

O
L

) 
–

 I
d

e
n
ti
fy

 a
n

d
 

u
p

d
a

te
 a

ll 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 

   

Q
u

a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 o

f 

E
q
IA

s
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 t

h
a

t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 c

o
lle

c
ti
n

g
 d

a
ta

 

a
g
a

in
s
t 

a
ll 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 a

n
d

 

a
n

a
ly

s
in

g
 i
t 

in
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

44



  
2

8
 

in
 o

u
r 

A
n

n
u
a

l 
E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
fo

r 
2
0
1

4
/1

5
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 t
h

a
t 
d

a
ta

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

s
o

m
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 i
s
 

n
o

t 
c
o

lla
te

d
. 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 c

a
s
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 

th
e

 d
a

ta
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 i
s
 n

o
t 
fu

lly
 a

n
a

ly
s
e

d
. 

 T
h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 f

e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 f

ro
m

 f
ro

n
tl
in

e
 

s
ta

ff
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 s

o
m

e
ti
m

e
s
 f

e
e

l 
u

n
c
o
m

fo
rt

a
b

le
 i
n

 r
e
q
u

e
s
ti
n

g
 s

u
c
h

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
. 

 

a
g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 n
in

e
 

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 C

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

to
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

y
 t

re
n

d
s
  
 

·
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 a
 

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 s

e
t 

o
f 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 M

y
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
u

s
e

rs
  

·
 

F
ro

n
tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff

 a
re

 

c
o

n
fi
d
e

n
t 

in
 a

s
k
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

rd
in

g
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 

·
 

T
ra

n
s
p

a
re

n
t,

 u
p

-t
o

 d
a

te
 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 d

a
ta

 o
n

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 p

ro
fi
le

s
 a

n
d

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 i
s
 e

a
s
ily

 

a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

fo
r 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 

U
p
d

a
te

 a
ll 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 t
o

 
c
a

p
tu

re
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 o
n

 
a

ll 
n

in
e

 P
ro

te
c
te

d
 

C
h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 (
O

L
) 

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 D

E
T

G
 

to
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

is
. 

w
a

y
s
. 

R
e
g
u

la
r 

u
p

d
a

te
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

C
E

G
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
G

a
te

w
a

y
 

 
In

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 i
n

to
 M

y
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
A

c
c
o

u
n
t  

 

B
e

n
 J

o
n

e
s
 (

O
L

) 
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 D

E
T

G
 

to
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

is
. 

D
e
liv

e
r 

‘W
h
a

t’
s
 i
t 
g
o

t 
to

 d
o

 
w

it
h

 y
o

u
’ 
w

o
rk

s
h
o

p
s
 t

o
 a

ll 
 

fr
o
n

tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff

 
 

P
o

lic
y
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
w

o
rk

s
h
o

p
s
 (

O
L

) 
 D

E
T

G
s
 t
o

 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 
fr

o
n

tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff

 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

is
e

 d
a

ta
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 

re
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
o
u

t -

s
o

u
rc

e
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n
 a

ll 

n
e

w
/ 

re
n

e
w

e
d

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

, 

S
L

A
s
 a

n
d
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
(O

L
)  

 D
E

T
G

s
 t
o

 
m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

is
 

w
it
h

in
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 

C
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 p

u
rs

u
e

 t
h

e
 a

s
p

ir
a

ti
o
n

s
 

c
o

n
ta

in
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 B
S

L
 C

h
a

rt
e
r 

R
e
a

s
o

n
 –

 T
h
e

 B
S

L
 c

h
a

rt
e
r 

w
a

s
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 

b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n
d

 e
n

d
o

rs
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
E

G
 

w
it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 o
u

r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

T
h
e

 C
h

a
rt

e
r 

p
le

d
g
e

s
 a

re
: 

·
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 
D

e
a
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 l
o

c
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

a
n

d
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

; 

·
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 l
e
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 

h
ig

h
 q

u
a

lit
y
 t

e
a

c
h

in
g
 o

f 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 a

lw
a

y
s
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
 

w
o

rk
 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 t

h
e

re
 

w
ill

 a
lw

a
y
s
 b

e
 n

e
w

 
o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

ff
e

rs
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 t
h

e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

m
o
re

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
. 

 D
E

T
G

s
 t
o

 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 a
t 

le
a

s
t 

o
n

e
 o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 t

o
 a

d
v
a

n
c
e

 

       D
E

T
G

s
 (

O
L

) 
 

S
ix

 m
o

n
th

ly
 a

u
d

it
s
 o

f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 m

a
d

e
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 

p
le

d
g
e

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 

a
u

d
it
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 

C
E

G
 

In
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

45



  
2

9
 

T
h
e

 f
e
e

d
b

a
c
k
 a

ro
u

n
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

w
a

s
 a

ls
o
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
o
u

tc
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

w
o

rk
s
h
o

p
s
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
n
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 

 

B
ri
ti
s
h

 S
ig

n
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g
e

; 

(G
iv

e
 a

ll 
d

e
a

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 t
h

e
 

o
p

ti
o
n

 o
f 
a

 b
ili

n
g

u
a

l 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 (

B
S

L
/E

n
g

lis
h

) 

·
 

G
iv

e
 a

ll 
d

e
a
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 t
h

e
 

o
p

ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 b

ili
n
g
u

a
l 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 (

B
S

L
/E

n
g
lis

h
);

 

·
 

E
n

s
u

re
 k

e
y
 s

ta
ff

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

w
it
h

 D
e

a
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 m

e
e

t 

m
in

im
u
m

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 

B
S

L
 s

k
ill

s
; 

a
n

d
  

·
 

C
o
n

s
u

lt
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
lo

c
a

l 

D
e
a
f 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 o

n
 a

 

re
g
u

la
r 

b
a

s
is

 

th
e

 a
s
p

ir
a

ti
o
n

s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

e
a

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 f
iv

e
 p

le
d

g
e
s
 

th
is

 y
e

a
r 

 

 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
is

 i
n
 t

h
e

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

to
 t

h
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
  

D
is

a
b

le
d

G
o
 –

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 u
s
e
 t

h
e

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 G

u
id

e
 

R
e
a

s
o

n
 –

 f
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

s
h
o

p
s
 

w
a

s
 m

o
re

 c
a

n
 b

e
 d

o
n

e
 t

o
 p

u
b

lic
is

e
 t
h

e
 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 G

u
id

e
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 u

s
a

g
e

. 
O

u
r 

h
it
 r

a
te

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

2
-3

 y
e

a
rs

 h
a

s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

u
t 

it
 c

a
n

 b
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
. 

 

·
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

h
it
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
it
e
 

U
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 a
 p

u
b

lic
it
y
 

c
a

m
p
a

ig
n

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 t
h

e
 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 G

u
id

e
 (

P
u

b
lic

is
e
 

th
e

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 G

u
id

e
 i
n

 

H
a
rr

o
w

 P
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 n

e
w

s
le

tt
e

rs
, 

W
in

d
o

w
 S

ti
c
k
e

rs
) 

 

C
o
m

m
s
 t

e
a

m
 t

o
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

 t
h

e
 

c
a

m
p
a

ig
n

 

D
E

T
G

s
 t
o

 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 

c
a

m
p
a

ig
n

 a
n
d

 

in
c
lu

d
e

 a
rt

ic
le

s
 i
n

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

n
e

w
s
le

tt
e

rs
 

A
 q

u
a

rt
e
rl
y
 u

p
d

a
te

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

h
it
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 C

E
G

 

K
P

I 
- 

N
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

h
it
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

D
is

a
b

le
d

G
o
 s

it
e

 

A
tt

a
in

m
e
n

t 
–

 C
lo

s
in

g
 t
h

e
 g

a
p
 

N
a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 G
a
p

 f
o

r 
u

n
d
e

ra
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 

T
h
e

 g
a

p
 i
n
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n
t 
b

y
 

e
th

n
ic

it
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

h
e

re
 

th
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

g
a
p

 i
s
 

w
id

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

  

K
P

Is
 –

 A
tt
a

in
m

e
n
t 

K
P

I’
s
 

(S
e

e
 P

e
o

p
le

 S
c
o

re
c
a

rd
) 

46



  
3

0
 

p
u

p
il 

g
ro

u
p

s
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

a
n

d
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

. 
D

e
s
p

it
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 

w
o

rk
 b

y
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
, 

th
is

 d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 i
s
 

d
is

a
p

p
o

in
ti
n
g
 

re
d

u
c
e
d
 

fo
c
u

s
. 
W

o
rk

 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 H
a

rr
o
w

 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 

P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 (
H

S
IP

).
  

A
d

u
lt
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t,
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n

d
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 r

e
c
o

v
e

ry
 f

ro
m

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h
e

a
lt
h

 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
 

T
h
e

 A
c
ti
v
e

 M
in

d
s
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 w
it
h

 M
in

d
 i
n

 

H
a
rr

o
w

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 

p
ilo

t 
w

it
h

 2
6

0
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
 

w
it
h

 m
ild

 t
o

 m
o

d
e

ra
te

 

m
e

n
ta

l 
h
e

a
lt
h

 s
c
o

re
s
. 

O
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 a

n
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

t 
in

 a
 s

e
n

s
e

 o
f 

w
e

llb
e

in
g
, 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 t

o
 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 a

n
d
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 o

f 

s
e

lf
-h

e
lp

 g
ro

u
p

s
 

A
n

 e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g
 t

o
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 r
e
s
e
a

rc
h
 o

n
 

im
p

a
c
t 
o
f 

a
d
u

lt
 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 o

n
 

m
ild

 t
o
 m

o
d

e
ra

te
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

s
o

u
g
h

t  

P
e

o
p

le
s
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 

K
P

I 
- 

%
 o

f 
a
d

u
lt
s
 i
n

 c
o
n

ta
c
t 

w
it
h

 s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 m
e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n
 p

a
id

 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t  

 

A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 -
  

, 
G

iv
e

n
 t

h
e

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 

ta
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

, 
e

n
s
u

re
 t
h
e

s
e

 d
o

 n
o

t 

a
d

v
e

rs
e
ly

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
  

M
a

in
ta

in
 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
A

d
u

lt
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

E
n

s
u

re
 E

q
IA

s
 a

re
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e
n

 t
o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

P
e

o
p

le
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 

K
P

I 
–
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 (
A

d
u

lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 

C
a
re

) 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
: 

P
ro

m
o
te

 a
n
d
 C

e
le

b
ra

te
 t
h
e
 D

iv
e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
o
u
r 

B
o

ro
u
g
h
 a

n
d
 F

o
s
te

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

o
h
e
s
io

n
 

P
ri
o

ri
ty

 (
n
e

e
d

s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

) 

R
e
a

s
o

n
s
 

A
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
  

 

A
c
ti
o

n
s
  

W
h
a
t 
s
p
e

c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o
n

s
 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 n
e
e

d
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
e
a

c
h

 

p
ri
o

ri
ty

?
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 L
e
a

d
 

(S
L

) 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

a
l 
L

e
a
d

 

(O
L
) 

 

H
o
w

 w
ill

 t
h

is
 b

e
 m

e
a

s
u
re

d
 

47



  
3

1
 

A
c
c
o

u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 (

A
) 

U
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 a
 f
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
y
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 

a
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 w
id

e
 D

iv
e

rs
it
y
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 

·
 

A
rr

a
n

g
e

 a
 w

o
rk

s
h
o

p
 w

it
h

 

a
ll 

k
e

y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
, 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 

V
C

S
 t

o
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d

 

o
f 

s
u

c
h

 a
 n

e
tw

o
rk

  

·
 

P
ro

d
u

c
e

 a
n
d

 p
re

s
e

n
t 

a
 

re
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h
e

 C
E

G
 w

it
h

 

k
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g
s
 a

n
d

 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
  

A
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 w
id

e
 D

iv
e

rs
it
y
 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 c
o

n
s
is

ti
n
g
 o

f 
k
e

y
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

s
 w

h
o

 c
a
n

 

s
h

a
re

 b
e

s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
, 

s
k
ill

s
 

a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 t
o

 p
ro

-

a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 p

ro
m

o
te

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
 

 

P
o

lic
y
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

- 

E
q
u

a
lit

y
 &

 

D
iv

e
rs

it
y
 (

S
L

 &
 

O
L

)  

 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
e
d
 b

y
 

M
A

D
G

 &
 H

a
rr

o
w

 

E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 C

e
n

tr
e
 

 

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

E
G

 w
it
h

 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 b

y
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
6

. 

O
rg

a
n

is
e
, 

d
e

liv
e

r 
a
n

d
 c

e
le

b
ra

te
 k

e
y
 

d
i v

e
rs

it
y
 e

v
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 

R
e
a

s
o

n
 –

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

p
 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 w

o
rk

s
h
o

p
s
, 

w
e

 

w
o

u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
n

 t
h
e

 %
 o

f 
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 a
g
re

e
 t

h
a

t 
p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

b
a

c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
s
 g

e
t 

o
n

 w
e

ll 

to
g
e

th
e

r 
in

 t
h
e

ir
 a

re
a

.  

·
 

A
g
re

e
 a

n
 a

n
n
u

a
l 
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 

c
a

le
n

d
a

r 
o
f 

e
v
e

n
ts

 

·
 

W
o
rk

 i
n

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
it
h

 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
, 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 V

C
S

 t
o

 o
rg

a
n

is
e

, 

d
e

liv
e

r 
a
n

d
 c

e
le

b
ra

te
 t
h

e
 

e
v
e

n
ts

 

A
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

k
e

y
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 

e
v
e

n
ts

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 i
n

 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 p
a

rt
n
e
rs

 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 V

C
S

, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

w
e

ll 
a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 w
it
h

 g
re

a
t 

fe
e

d
b

a
c
k
. 

M
A

D
G

 (
O

L
) 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 

P
o

lic
y
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

–
 

E
q
u

a
lit

y
 &

 

D
iv

e
rs

it
y
 a

n
d

 

H
a
rr

o
w

 E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 

C
e
n

tr
e
 

D
E

T
G

s
 t
o

 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 

e
v
e

n
ts

 b
y
 

a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
in

g
 s

ta
ff

 

to
 a

tt
e

n
d
 

R
e
g
u

la
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 u

p
d
a
te

s
 

to
 t

h
e

 C
E

G
 

K
P

I 
- 

%
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 

a
g
re

e
 t

h
a
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

b
a

c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
s
 g

e
t 

o
n

 w
e

ll 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
in

 t
h
e

ir
 

a
re

a
. 

48



  
3

2
 

E
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
–
 D

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

e
le

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e

 P
re

v
e

n
t 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

S
e

e
 P

re
v
e

n
t 

A
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 

S
e

e
 P

re
v
e

n
t 

A
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

C
o
h

e
s
io

n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

K
P

I 
- 

%
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 

a
g
re

e
 t

h
a
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

b
a

c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
s
 g

e
t 

o
n

 w
e

ll 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
in

 t
h
e

ir
 

a
re

a
. 

  

49



50

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	9 Corporate Equalites Objectives - Annual Progress Report 2015/16
	Annual Equalities Progress Report 2015-16 Final


